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BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
BENCH, AT MUMBAI
COMPANY SCHEME APPLICATION NO. 203 OF 2018
IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
AND
IN THE MATTER OF SECTIONS 230 TO 232 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

AND

IN THE MATTER OF SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION OF INDIA CIRCUS RETAIL PRIVATE

LIMITED (‘ICRPL’ OR ‘THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY’) WITH GODREJ & BOYCE
MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED (‘G&B’ OR ‘THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY’) AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS

FORM NO. CAA.2
[Pursuant to Section 230(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises,
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016]
India Circus Retail Private Limited ... the First Applicant Company
Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing Company ... the Second Applicant Company
Limited

NOTICE CONVENING THE MEETING OF THE EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF INDIA
CIRCUS RETAIL PRIVATE LIMITED, THE FIRST APPLICANT COMPANY

Notice is hereby given that by an Order dated 8" day of May 2018, the National Company Law Tribunal,
Mumbai Bench (‘NCLT’ or ‘the Tribunal’) has directed a Meeting to be held of the Equity Shareholders
of the First Applicant Company for the purpose of considering, and if thought fit, approving with or
without modification(s), the proposed arrangement embodied in the Scheme of Amalgamation of India
Circus Retail Private Limited (‘ICRPL’ or ‘the Transferor Company’ or ‘the Company’ or ‘the First
Applicant Company’) with Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing Company Limited (‘G&B’ or ‘the Transferee
Company’ or ‘the Second Applicant Company’) and their respective Shareholders (‘the Scheme”).



In pursuance of the said Order and as directed therein, further Notice is hereby given that a Meeting of the
Equity Shareholders of ICRPL will be held at Plant 11, Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing Company Limited,
Pirojshanagar, Vikhroli, Mumbai — 400 079 on Saturday, 23" day of June, 2018 at 10:00 a.m. at which
time and place, the Equity Shareholders of ICRPL are requested to attend, to consider, and if thought fit,

to approve, with or without modification(s) the following Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013
and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) (including any statutory
modifications or re-enactments thercof for the time being in force) and the Rules prescribed
thereunder and in accordance with relevant clauses of the Memorandum of Association and Articles
of Association of the Company and subject to the approval of the Hon’ble National Company Law
Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (‘NCLT”’ or ‘Tribunal’) and/or such other approvals, consents, permissions
or sanctions of the other Regulatory and other Authorities, as may be necessary and subject to such
conditions and modification(s), if any, as may be prescribed or stipulated by the NCLT or by any
Regulatory or other Authorities, from time to time, while granting such approvals, consents,
permissions or sanctions and which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company
(hereinafter referred to as the ‘Board’, which term shall be deemed to mean and include one or more
Committee(s) constituted/to be constituted by the Board or any other person authorised by it to
exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this Resolution), the Scheme of Amalgamation
of India Circus Retail Private Limited with Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing Company Limited and
their respective Shareholders (‘the Scheme’) be and is hereby approved.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds,
matters and things, as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem requisite, desirable, appropriate or
necessary to give effect to this Resolution and to effectively implement the proposed Amalgamation
embodied in the Scheme and to accept such modification(s), amendments, limitations and/or
conditions, if any, which may be required and/or imposed by the NCLT while sanctioning the
proposed arrangement embodied in the Scheme or by any authorities under law, and to do and cause
to do all acts and things to resolve any doubts or difficulties that may arise in giving effect to the

Scheme, as the Board may deem fit and proper.”

Copies of the said Scheme, and of the Statement under Section 230 of the Companies Act, 2013, along
with the enclosures as indicated in the Index to this Notice, can be obtained free of charge on any working

day (except Saturdays) prior to the date of the Meeting at the Registered Office of ICRPL and/ or at the



office of its Advocates, M/s Hemant Sethi & Co. having their office at 1602, Nav Parmanu, Behind Amar
Cinema, Chembur, Mumbai — 400071.

Person(s) entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting, may vote in person or by proxy, provided that all
proxies in Form MGT-11 are deposited at the Registered Office of ICRPL at Godrej Plant 13 Annex, 2nd
Floor, Pirojshanagar, Vikhroli (E), Mumbai — 400 079 not later than 48 hours before the Meeting.

Proxy Forms are made available at the Registered Office of ICRPL.

The Tribunal has appointed Mr P.E. Fouzdar, Director of ICRPL and failing him, Mr. P.K. Gandhi,
Director of ICRPL, and failing him Mr. K.B. Master, Director of ICRPL as Chairman of the said Equity
Shareholders Meeting. The above-mentioned Scheme, if approved by the Equity Shareholders in the

Meeting, will be subject to the subsequent approval of the Tribunal.

Dated 15" day of May, 2018

Mumbai
Sd/-
P.E. Fouzdar
DIN: 00066123
Chairman appointed for the Meeting
Registered Office:

Godrej Plant 13 Annex, 2nd Floor, Pirojshanagar, Vikhroli (E), Mumbai — 400 079
Notes:

1.  The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 230(3) and 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 is

enclosed herewith and forms part of this Notice.

2. AN EQUITY SHAREHOLDER OF THE COMPANY ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE
IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT ONE OR MORE PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD
OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.
THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING A PROXY SHOULD HOWEVER BE DEPOSITED AT
THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF ICRPL NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE
COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

3. All alterations made in the Proxy Form in Form MGT-11 should be initialed.

4.  The Equity Shareholders of ICRPL whose names are appearing in the records of ICRPL as on

30™ April, 2018 shall be eligible to attend and vote at the Meeting of the Equity Shareholders of
3



10.

11.

12.

ICRPL. Only Equity Shareholders of ICRPL may attend and vote (either in person or by proxy
or by Authorized Representative under applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013) at the
Equity Shareholders’ Meeting. The Authorized Representative of a body corporate which is an
Equity Shareholder of ICRPL may attend and vote at the Meeting provided a Certified True Copy
of the resolution of the board of directors or other governing body of the body corporate
authorizing such representative to attend the Meeting is deposited at the Registered Office of
ICRPL not later than 48 hours before the schedule time of the commencement of the Meeting. A
person can act as a Proxy on behalf of Equity Shareholders not exceeding 50 (fifty) and holding
in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights. An Equity Shareholder holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as Proxy and such person shall not act as a
proxy for any other person or Equity Shareholders. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting,

only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be entitled to vote at the Meeting.

During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of Meeting
and ending with the conclusion of the Meeting, a Member would be entitled to inspect the proxies

lodged at any time during the business hours of the Company.

The quorum of the Meeting of the Equity Shareholders of ICRPL, as directed by the NCLT, is 2
Members of ICRPL, present in person.

An Equity Shareholder or his/ her Proxy is requested to bring the copy of the Notice to the
Meeting and produce the Attendance Slip, duly completed and signed, at the entrance of the

Meeting venue.

The Notice, together with accompanying documents, is being sent to all Equity Shareholders

whose names appeared in the Register of Members as on 30" April, 2018.

Mr. Nilesh Shah, Practicing Company Secretary (CP Number 2631 and Membership No. 4554)
has been appointed as the Scrutinizer under the Order of the NCLT dated 8" May, 2018 to

scrutinize the voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of Meeting, count the votes cast at the
Meeting and thereafter, in the presence of at least two witnesses not in employment of ICRPL
shall submit a Scrutinizer’s Report of the total votes cast in favour of or against, if any, not later

than 48 hours after the conclusion of the Meeting to the Chairman or a person authorised by him.
The Chairman or a person authorised by him shall declare the result of the voting forthwith.

This Notice will be displayed on the website of [CRPL at www.indiacircus.com . This Notice will

be advertised in the following Newspapers, namely (i) Free Press Journal in the English language
4



13.

and (ii) Navshakti in Marathi language, as directed by the NCLT.

Pursuant to Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules made thereunder,
(including any statutory modification(s), clarifications, exemptions or re-enactments thereof for
the time being in force) the Notice would be sent by electronic mode to those Equity Shareholders
whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Depository or the Company’s Share Transfer
Agent, unless the Equity Shareholders have requested for a physical copy of the same. For Equity
Shareholders who have not registered their e-mail addresses, physical copies would be sent by
the permitted mode. However, in case an Equity Shareholder wishes to receive a physical copy

of the Notice, he/she is requested to send an email to pefl@godrej.com or

umeshs@indiacircus.com duly quoting his/her DP ID and Client ID or the Folio number, as the

case may be.



BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
BENCH, AT MUMBAI
COMPANY SCHEME APPLICATION NO. 203 OF 2018
IN THE MATTER OF COMPANIES ACT, 2013
AND
IN THE MATTER OF SECTIONS 230 TO 232 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,
2013 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

AND

IN THE MATTER OF SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION OF INDIA CIRCUS RETAIL PRIVATE

LIMITED (‘ICRPL’ OR ‘THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY’) WITH GODREJ & BOYCE
MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED (‘G&B’ OR ‘THE TRANSFEREE COMPANY’) AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS.

India Circus Retail Private Limited ... the First Applicant Company

Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing Company ... the Second Applicant Company
Limited

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTIONS 230(3) AND 102 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 6 OF THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES,
ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016 FOR THE MEETING OF
EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF INDIA CIRCUS RETAIL PRIVATE LIMITED
CONVENED AS PER THE DIRECTIONS OF THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW
TRIBUNAL, MUMBAI BENCH.

In this statement, Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing Company Limited is hereinafter referred to as ‘G&B’
or ‘the Transferee Company’ or the ‘Second Applicant Company’ and India Circus Retail Private Limited
is hereinafter referred to as ‘ICRPL’ or ‘the Transferor Company’ or ‘the First Applicant Company’.
The other definitions contained in Scheme of Amalgamation of India Circus Retail Private Limited (‘the
Transferor Company’) with Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing Company Limited (‘the Transferee
Company’) and their respective Shareholders (‘the Scheme”) will apply to this Explanatory Statement
also. The following statement as required under Section 230(3) read with Section 102 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) sets forth the details of the proposed Scheme, its effects and, in
particular any material interests of the Directors in their capacity as Equity Shareholders and such
other details as required under Sections 230 to 232 of the Act read with the Companies

(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules 2016:



Pursuant to an Order dated 8" day of May, 2018 passed by the National Company Law
Tribunal, Mumbai Bench (‘NCLT’) in the Company Scheme Application No. 203 of 2018
referred to hereinabove (‘Order’), a Meeting of the Equity Shareholders of ICRPL is being
convened and held at Plant 11, Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing Company Limited,
Pirojshanagar, Vikhroli, Mumbai— 400079 on Saturday, 23 June, 2018 at 10:00 a.m. for the
purpose of considering and if thought fit, approving with or without modification(s), the
proposed Scheme of ICRPL with G&B and their respective Shareholders.

In terms of the said Order, the quorum for the said Meeting is 2 members of ICRPL, as
prescribed under Section 103 of the Act, present in person. Further in terms of the said Order,
NCLT has appointed Mr. P.E. Fouzdar, Director of ICRPL failing him, Mr. P.K. Gandhi,
Director of ICRPL and failing him Mr. K.B. Master, Director of ICRPL to be the Chairman
of the said Meeting including for any adjournment or adjournments thereof.

In accordance with the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, the Scheme shall be acted
upon only if a majority of persons representing three fourths in value of the Equity
Shareholders, of ICRPL, voting in person or by proxy, agree to the Scheme.

The draft Scheme was placed before the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company at its
Meeting held on 29" January, 2018.

The Board of Directors of the Transferor Company have come to the conclusion that the
Scheme is in the best interest of the Company and its Shareholders.

A copy of the Scheme as approved by the Board of Directors of ICRPL at its Meeting held on
29" January, 2018 is enclosed herewith.

BACKGROUND OF THE COMPANIES INVOLVED IN THE SCHEME IS AS
UNDER: -

INDIA CIRCUS RETAIL PRIVATE LIMITED (‘ICRPL’ OR ‘THE TRANSFEROR
COMPANY’ OR ‘THE FIRST APPLICANT COMPANY")
a. The Transferor Company was incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act,

1956, on 16" day of November, 2011, in the State of Maharashtra in the name of

Design India Retail Private Limited. Subsequently the name of the Transferor
Company was changed to India Circus Retail Private Limited on 17 day of March,
2012. The Corporate Identification Number of the Transferor Company is
U52600MH2011PTC223988. The Permanent Account Number of the Transferor
Company is AAECDO0258L.



b. The Registered Office of ICRPL is situated at Godrej Plant 13 Annex, 2nd Floor,
Pirojshanagar, Vikhroli (E), Mumbai - 400079. The email address of ICRPL is
umeshs@indiacircus.com.

c. The details of the Authorized, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital of ICRPL
as on 315t March, 2017 is as follows:

Amount
Particulars

(in Rs.)
Authorised Capital
5,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10 each 50,00,000
2,50,00,000 Preference Shares of face value of Rs. 10

25,00,00,000

each
Total 25,50,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital
3,85,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10 each 38,50,000
2,30,00,000 6% Optionally Convertible Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares of face value of Rs. 10 |  23,00,00,000

each

Total 23,38,50,000

Subsequent to the above date, there has been change a in the Issued, Subscribed and
Paid-up Share Capital of ICRPL. The Authorized, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share
Capital of ICRPL as on 31% January, 2018 is as under:-

Amount
Particulars

(in Rs.)
Authorised Capital
5,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10 each 50,00,000
2,50,00,000 Preference Shares of face value of Rs. 10

25,00,00,000

each
Total 25,50,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital
3,85,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 10 each 38,50,000




h.

Amount
Particulars
(in Rs.)
2,50,00,000 6% Optionally Convertible Cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares of face value of Rs. 10 25,00,00,000
each
Total 25,38,50,000

The securities of ICRPL are not listed on any Stock Exchanges.

The objects for which the Transferor Company has been established are set out in its
Memorandum of Association. The Main Objects of ICRPL is set out hereunder:

“To carry on business as dealers, manufacturers, producers, importers, exporters, re-
exporters, mercantile agents, wholesalers, distributors, retailers, middlemen, chain
store operators, super market operators, traders, franchisors, franchisees, on-line
operators including e-commerce of lifestyle products (raw inputs, semi-finished and/ or
finished), furniture, art, artifacts, consumables, electrical/ non-electrical, electronic/
non-electronic products, household and other products, including inter alia acting as
designers for the foregoing lending the brand name, brand building, advisors and
service providers in regard to the foregoing and/ or any of them.”

ICRPL is engaged in the business of home décor products and supply of designs to third
parties.

There has been no change in the Object Clause of ICRPL since incorporation.

GODREJ & BOYCE MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED (‘G&B’ OR ‘THE

TRANSFEREE COMPANY’ OR ‘THE SECOND APPLICANT COMPANY”)

a. The Transferee Company was incorporated under the provisions of the Indian

Companies Act, 1913, on the 3" day of March, 1932, in the state of Maharashtra in the
name of Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing Company Limited. The Corporate
Identification Number of the Transferee Company is U28993MH1932PLC001828. The
Permanent Account Number of the Transferee Company is AAACG1395D.

. The Registered Office of G&B is situated at Pirojshanagar, Vikhroli, Mumbai - 400079.

The email id of G&B is pef(@godrej.com.




c. The details of the Authorized, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up share capital of G&B as
on 315 March 2017 is as under:

Particulars Amount (In Rs.)
Authorized Capital
11,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 100 each 11,00,00,000
9,00,000 Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of

9,00,00,000
Rs. 100 each
Total 20,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital

6,78,448 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 100 each 6,78,44,800

Total 6,78,44,800

Subsequent to the above date, there has been a change in the Issued, Subscribed and
Paid-up Share Capital of G&B. The Authorized, Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share

Capital of G&B as on 31% January, 2018 is as under:-

Particulars Amount (In Rs.)
Authorized Capital
11,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 100 each 11,00,00,000
9,00,000 Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of

9,00,00,000
Rs. 100 each
Total 20,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital

6,78,445 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 100 each 6,78,44,500

Total 6,78,44,500

d. The securities of G&B are not listed on any Stock Exchanges.
The objects for which the Transferee Company has been established are set out in the
Memorandum of Association. A few of the Main Objects of G&B are briefly set out

hereunder:-

(13
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1. To carry on in India and elsewhere the business of manufacturing, assembling,
fabricating, altering, acquiring, commercialising, dismantling, designing,
developing, exporting, importing, buying, selling, letting on hire, installing,
inventing, maintaining, servicing, undertaking, modifying, marketing, operating,
repairing,  producing,  protecting,  promoting, renovating,  exchanging,
reconditioning, remodelling, and to act as agents, traders, brokers, franchisers,
stockists, distributors, job workers, advisers, consultants, consignors, vendors,
transporters, or otherwise, of all types of home appliances, office equipment and
appliances, matresses, consumer durables, and other equipment, including storage
units, all types of furniture, fire-resisting products, equipment and systems, seating
and desking systems, fire detection systems, fire fighting equipments, passive fire
protection, and any other equipment/ accessories pertaining to fire prevention and
life safety measures, modular office systems, security equipment, systems and
solutions, telecommunication and audio-visual presentation equipment, computers,
computer peripherals, printers, printing equipment, batteries, photocopiers and
photocopying systems, locks, locking systems & solutions, doors, cash boxes, coffers,
typewriters, beverages and food vending machines, scissors, knives, cutlery and
kitchen equipment, industrial products, appliances, systems and equipment,
including storage systems and solutions, workshop equipment, material handling
warehousing and cleaning equipment, compressors, motors and blowers,
construction machinery, tools and toolings, industrial machines, machine tools,
process plant and equipment, fabrications, apparatuses, for all applications in
commercial and industrial establishments and units, and all products, components,
accessories, sub-assemblies, installations and sub-systems thereof, of every size,
description, and variety, and made of iron, steel, any metal(s) or alloy, nonmetals, or
any combination thereof and to otherwise sell and deal in the same.

2. To carry on the business of iron founders, iron masters, smelters, mechanical,
industrial and automation engineers, manufacturers of agricultural implements and
other machinery, tool makers, metal workers, millwrights, machinists, iron and steel
converters, and steel makers, brass founders, boiler makers, wood workers, builders,
painters, metallurgists, electrical and electronics engineers, electronic security and
surveillance contractors, environmental engineers, structural and construction
engineers, water supply engineers, gas makers, farmers, gardeners, printers, carriers
and merchants, and to buy, sell, manufacture, repair, convert, alter, let on hire, and

deal in machinery, implements, rolling-stock, and hardware of all kinds, and to carry
11



on any other business (manufacturing, turnkey projects or otherwise) which may
seem to the Company capable of being conveniently carried on in connection with
the above, or otherwise calculated directly or indirectly to enhance the value of any
of the Company's property and rights for the time being.

3. To acquire and take over as a going concern the business of Messrs. Godrej & Boyce
Manufacturing Company and the Factory for the manufacture of safes, boxes,
cabinets, shelves etc., belonging to Messrs. Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing
Company situated in Bombay with or without the assets and liabilities of that business
or any of them at such price and upon such terms and conditions as may be agreed

’

upon.’

f. The main business carried on by G&B is of manufacturing and marketing of various
consumer durables, office equipments, industrial products and real estate development.
g. There have been changes in the Objects of the Transferee Company during the last five
years. The said changes have been highlighted in the Memorandum of Association, the
copies of which are available for inspection as per clause 15(y) below.
BACKGROUND OF THE SCHEME
The Scheme inter-alia provides for the Amalgamation of ICRPL with G&B and consequent
dissolution, without winding up of ICRPL and cancellation of Equity Shares held by G&B in

ICRPL and various other matters consequential or otherwise integrally connected herewith.

RATIONALE OF THE SCHEME

ICRPL is a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of G&B. ICRPL is primarily engaged in the business
of home décor products and supply of designs to third parties. G&B is engaged in the business
of manufacturing and marketing of various consumer durables, office equipments, industrial

products and real estate development.

The rationale of the Scheme is as follows:

. Operational synergies with the existing business of G&B;

. Elimination of multiple entities;

. Reducing the multiplicities of legal and regulatory compliances;

. Reducing time and efforts for co-ordination of financials at group level,;
. Elimination of duplicative communication and coordination efforts; and
. Rationalisation of administrative and compliance costs.

12



10.

SALIENT FEATURES OF THE SCHEME

Salient features of the Scheme are set out as below:

i

1i.

1ii.

iv.

VI

vii.

The Scheme of Amalgamation has been presented under Sections 230 to 232 of the Act
and other applicable provisions of the Act, as the case may be, including any statutory
modifications or re-enactments thereof, and Rules made thereunder and amendments
thereof, for the amalgamation of ICRPL with G&B.

“Appointed Date” for the Scheme is 1% April, 2017.

“Effective Date” means, for the purpose of this Scheme, the last of the date on which all
the conditions specified in Clause 15 are complied with and the Scheme shall become
effective. References in this Scheme to the date of “‘coming into effect of this Scheme”
or “effectiveness of this Scheme” shall mean the Effective Date;

With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, the entire
business and assets and properties of the Transferor Company, shall, under the provisions
of Sections 230 to 232 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act and Section
2(1B) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, and without any further act or deed, stand transferred
to and vested into, as a going concern, into G&B, so as to vest in G&B all the rights, title
and interest pertaining to the business of the Transferor Company.

The Amalgamation of ICRPL with G&B, pursuant to and in accordance with the Scheme,
shall take place with effect from the Appointed Date, but shall be operative from the
Effective Date. Therefore, for all regulatory and tax purposes, the Amalgamation would
be effective from the Appointed Date of the Scheme.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and in consideration of the amalgamation, the
shares held by G&B in ICRPL shall get cancelled and no Equity Shares shall be issued
by G&B as ICRPL is a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of G&B.

G&B shall account for the Amalgamation in its books of accounts as per Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind-AS) 103 on Accounting for Amalgamations as specified in

Clause 6 of the Scheme.

viii. The Scheme is conditional upon and subject to the following:

a) The requisite consent, approvals or permission of the Central Government or any other
Statutory or Regulatory Authority which by law or otherwise may be necessary for the
implementation of this Scheme

(b) The Scheme being approved by the respective requisite majorities of the Members and
Creditors of ICRPL and G&B as required under the Act and as may be directed by the
Hon’ble NCLT.

(c) Obtaining the sanction of the Hon'ble NCLT by ICRPL and G&B under Sections 230
13



to 232 of the Act and other applicable provisions thereunder.

(d) The Certified Copies of the Orders of the Hon’ble NCLT sanctioning the Scheme, are
filed with the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra, Mumbai by ICRPL and G&B,
respectively.

The features set out above being only the salient features of the Scheme, the Equity
Shareholders of G&B are requested to read the entire text of the Scheme to get themselves

fully acquainted with the provisions thereof.

11. CAPITAL STRUCTURE PRE AND POST THE SCHEME

a. The Pre-Amalgamation capital structure of ICRPL is mentioned in Paragraph 7 above.
Post amalgamation, ICRPL shall be dissolved without being wound up.

b. The Pre-Amalgamation capital structure of G&B is mentioned in Paragraph 7 above.
The entire Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Share capital of ICRPL is held by G&B.
Hence, upon the Scheme becoming effective, no shares of G&B shall be allotted in
lieu or exchange of the holding in ICRPL and, investment in the Share Capital of
ICRPL shall stand cancelled in the books of G&B. Upon the coming into effect of this
Scheme, the share certificates, and/or the shares in electronic form if any representing
the shares held by G&B, and its nominees, in [CRPL shall be deemed to be cancelled
without any further act or deed for cancellation thereof by G&B, and shall cease to be

in existence accordingly. The Post- Amalgamation capital structure of G&B will be as

follows:
Particulars Amount (In Rs.)

Authorized Capital
11,00,000 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 100 each 11,00,00,000
9,00,000 Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of
face value of Rs. 100 each -00.00,000
Total 20,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital
6,78,445 Equity Shares of face value of Rs. 100 each 6,78,44,500
Total 6,78,44,500

12. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN PRE- AND POST THE SCHEME
a) The Pre-Amalgamation Equity shareholding pattern of ICRPL as on the date of this
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statement is as follows:

Sr. Name of the Shareholder No. of | Shareholding
No. Equity | as % of total
Shares | no. of Equity
held shares issued
1. | Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing Company Limited 3,84,994 99.99%
2. | Mr. P.K. Gandhi with Godrej & Boyce 1 0.00%
Manufacturing Company Limited
3. | Mr. P.E. Fouzdar with Godrej & Boyce 1 0.00%
Manufacturing Company Limited
4. | Mr. B.M. Wadia with Godrej & Boyce 1 0.00%
Manufacturing Company Limited
5. | Mr. K.B. Master with Godrej & Boyce 1 0.00%
Manufacturing Company Limited
6. | Mr. A.S. Mathur with Godrej & Boyce 1 0.00%
Manufacturing Company Limited
7. | Mr. Bhavesh K. Khandhar with Godrej & Boyce 1 0.00%
Manufacturing Company Limited
TOTAL 3,85,000 100.00%
a) The Pre-Amalgamation Preference shareholding pattern of ICRPL as on the date of this
statement is as follows:
Sr. Name of the Shareholder No. of 6% Optionally | Shareholding
No. Convertible Cumulative | as % of total
Redeemable  Preference | no. of
Shares (OCCRPS) held OCCRPS
issued
1. | Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing 2,50,00,000 100.00%
Company Limited
b) The Pre-Amalgamation shareholding pattern of G&B as on the date of this statement is
as follows:
Sr. Name of the Shareholder No. of Shareholding
No. Equity | as % of total
Shares | no. of Equity
held shares issued
1. | Mr. A.B. Godrej 5 0.00%
2. | Mr. A.B. Godrej, Trustee of ABG Family Trust 41,095 6.06%
3. | Ms. T.A. Dubash 6,922 1.02%
4. | Ms. T.A. Dubash, Trustee of TAD Family Trust 14,107 2.08%
5. | Mr. P.A. Godrej 6,922 1.02%
6. | Mr. P.A. Godrej, Trustee of PAG Family Trust 14,107 2.08%
7. | Ms. N. Godrej 6,923 1.02%
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8. | Ms. N. Godrej, Trustee of NG Family Trust 14,107 2.08%

9. | Mr. N.B. Godrej 21,345 3.15%

10. | Mr. N.B. Godrej, Trustee of NBG Family Trust 32,023 4.72%

11. | Mr. S.N. Godrej 47 0.01%

12.| Mr. N.B. Godrej, Trustee of SNG Family Trust 16,892 2.49%

13.| Mr. B.N. Godrej 1,459 0.22%

14.| Mr. N.B. Godrej, Trustee of BNG Family Trust 15,480 2.28%

15.| Mr. N.B. Godrej, Trustee of HNG Family Trust 16,939 2.50%

16.| Mr. J.N. Godrej 5 0.00%

17.] Mr. J.N. Godrej & Others, Trustees of JING Family 32,710 4.82%
Trust

18.| Ms. P.J. Godrej 33 0.00%

19.| Ms. R.J. Godrej 1 0.00%

20.| Mr. J.N. Godrej & Others, Trustees of The Raika 10,376 1.53%
Godrej Family Trust

21.| Mr. J.N. Godrej & Others, Trustees of Raika Lineage 25,342 3.74%
Trust

22.| Mr. N.J. Godrej 10,379 1.53%

23.| Mr. J.N. Godrej & Others, Trustees of Navroze 25,342 3.74%
Lineage Trust

24.| Ms. S.G. Crishna 20 0.00%

25.| Ms. S.G. Crishna & Others, Trustees of SGC Family 35,313 5.20%
Trust

26.| Mr. V.M. Crishna 13 0.00%

27.| Ms. F.C. Bieri 10,380 1.53%

28.| Ms. S.G. Crishna & Others, Trustees of FVC Family 24,040 3.54%
Trust

29.| Ms. Nyrika Holkar 10,381 1.53%

30.| Ms. S.G. Crishna & Others, Trustees of NVC Family 24,040 3.54%
Trust

31.| Mr. R.K. Naoroji 1 0.00%

32.| Mr. R.K. Naoroji & Others, Partners of M/s. RKN 1,04,185 15.36%
Enterprises

33.| Mr. A F. Golwalla & Others, Trustees of Pirojsha 1,57,500 23.21%
Godrej Foundation

34.| Surveyors & Company Pvt. Ltd. 11 0.00%
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13.

14.

TOTAL | 6,78,445 | 100.00% |

DISCLOSURE ON EFFECT OF AMALGAMATION
There is no effect of the Amalgamation on the Key Managerial Personnel, Directors,

Promoters and Non-Promoters of the Company.

EXTENT OF SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL:

The Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and their respective relatives, of ICRPL
may be deemed to be concerned and/ or interested in the Scheme only to the extent of their
shareholding in their respective Companies, or to the extent the said Directors/ KMP are the
Partners, Directors, Members of the Companies, Firms, Association of Persons, Bodies
Corporate and/ or Beneficiary of Trust that hold Shares in any of the Companies. Save as
aforesaid, none of the Directors, Managing Director or the Manager or KMP of the Transferor

Company and G&B have any material interest in the Scheme.

a) The details of the present Directors and KMP of ICRPL and their respective

shareholdings in the Transferor Company and G&B as on the date of the statement are

as follows:
Sr. | Name Designation Shares Shares held
No. held in in G&B
ICRPL
1.| K.R. Mehta Whole Time Nil Nil
Director
2.| P.K. Gandhi Director Nil Nil
3.| P.E. Fouzdar Director Nil Nil
4. | K.B. Master Director Nil Nil
5.| B.N. Doongaji | Director Nil Nil
6.| G.V. Sampat Director Nil Nil
7.| U.V. Shukla Chief Nil Nil
Financial
Officer and
Company
Secretary

b) The details of the present Directors and KMP of G&B and their respective
shareholdings in the Transferor Company and G&B as on the date of this statement are

as follows:
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15.

Sr. Name Designation Shares Shares held
No. held in in G&B
ICRPL
1. Mr. J.N. Godrej | Chairman & Managing Nil 93,775*
Director
2. Mr. A.B. Godrej | Director Nil 41,100%**
3. Mr. N.B. Godrej | Director Nil 1,02,679#
4. Mr. V.M. Executive Director Nil 13
Crishna
5. Mr. A.G. Verma | Executive Director & Nil Nil
President
6. Ms. Nyrika Executive Director- Nil 10,381
Holkar Corporate Affairs
7. Mr. K.N. Director Nil Nil
Petigara
8. Mr. P.P. Shah Director Nil Nil
9. Ms. A. Director Nil Nil
Ramachandran
10. | Mr. K.M. Elavia | Director Nil Nil
11. | Mr. N.J. Godrej | Director Nil 10,379
12. | Mr. P.E. Executive Vice Nil Nil
Fouzdar President (Corporate
Affairs) & Company
Secretary
13. | Mr. P.K. Gandhi | Chief Financial Officer Nil Nil

*Out of 93,775 Equity Shares held, 32,710 Shares held as a Trustee of JNG Family Trust, 10,376 Shares
held as a Trustee of The Raika Godrej Family Trust, 25,342 Shares held as a Trustee of Navroze
Lineage Trust and 25,342 Shares held as a Trustee of Raika Lineage Trust.

**Qut of 41,100 Equity Shares held, 41,095 Shares held as a Trustee of ABG Family Trust

#Out of 1,02,679 Equity Shares held, 32,023 Shares held as a Trustee of NBG Family Trust, 16,892
Shares held a Trustee of SNG Family Trust, 15,480 Shares held as a Trustee of BNG Family Trust and
16,939 Shares held as a Trustee of HNG Family Trust.

GENERAL

a) The Transferor Company and G&B have filed a joint Application before the National
Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench for seeking requisite directions in connection with
the Scheme under Sections 230 to 232 of the Act.

b) Inrelation to the Meeting of the Equity Shareholders of ICRPL, Equity Shareholders whose
names are appearing in the records of ICRPL as on 30" April, 2018 shall be eligible to
attend and vote at the Meeting of the Equity Shareholders of G&B convened at the direction
of the Tribunal.
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h)

)

k)

D

It may be noted that this Scheme is in the nature of Merger by absorption and hence, the
term Scheme of “Amalgamation” shall be construed as Scheme of “Merger by Absorption”.
There is no amount due to the Secured Creditors of ICRPL as on 31 January, 2018 and
the amount due to Unsecured Creditors by ICRPL as on 31% January, 2018 is Rs
5,23,69,665.

The amount due by G&B to its Secured Creditors as on 315 January, 2018 is Rs.
7,87,18,00,000 and the amount due by G&B to its Unsecured Creditors as on 31 January,
2018 is Rs. 48,87,56,67,639.

The rights and interests of the Unsecured and Secured Creditors of the Transferor Company
and G&B will not be prejudicially affected by the Scheme as no sacrifice or waiver is, at
all, called from them nor their rights sought to be modified in any manner and post the
Scheme, G&B will be able to meet its liabilities as they arise in the ordinary course of
business.

Except to the extent of the shares held by the Directors and KMP stated under paragraph
14 above, none of the Directors, KMP of ICRPL or their respective relatives is in any way
connected or interested in the aforesaid Resolution.

The latest audited accounts for the year ended 315 March, 2017 and latest unaudited
accounts as on 31% January, 2018 of G&B indicates that it is in a solvent position and would
be able to meet liabilities as they arise in the course of business. There is no likelihood that
any Secured and/or Unsecured Creditor of the Transferor Company would lose or be
prejudiced as a result of the Scheme being passed since no sacrifice or waiver is, at all,
called for from them nor are their rights sought to be modified in any manner. Hence, the
Scheme will neither cast any additional burden on the Shareholders or Creditors of G&B
nor will it affect their interest.

There are no winding up proceedings pending against G&B and ICRPL as of date.

No investigation proceedings are pending under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
or under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 in respect of ICRPL or G&B.

A copy of the Scheme has been filed with Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra, Mumbai
by each of G&B and ICRPL on 12" day of May, 2018.

The Transferee Company and the Transferor Company are required to seek approvals/
sanctions/ no-objections from certain Regulatory and Governmental Authorities for the
Scheme such as the Registrar of Companies, Regional Director and the Official Liquidator

(in case of Transferor Company) and will obtain the same at the relevant time.

m) In the event that the Scheme is withdrawn in accordance with its terms, the Scheme shall

stand revoked, cancelled and be of no effect and null and void.
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n) Names and addresses of the Directors and Promoters of ICRPL are as under:

Sr. | Name of Director Address

No

1. Mr. K.R. Mehta 15-Pentacle, 4th Floor, 61/D, Vivek Singh
Lane, Sophia College, Cumballa Hill, Mumbai
400026

2. | Mr. P.K. Gandhi M-17, Godrej Baug, Off Napeansea Road,
Mumbai - 400026

3. | Mr. P.E. Fouzdar B-13, Godrej Baug, Off Napeansea Road,
Mumbai - 400026

4. | Mr. K.B. Master No. 3, Readymoney Building, 2" Floor, Sir
Ratan Tata Road, Tardeo, Mumbai 400034

5. | Mr. B.N. Doongaji 4™ Floor, Mackawee Mansion, 7-Gunbow
Street, Fort, Mumbai, Maharashtra- 400001

6. | Mr. G.V. Sampat 1402, Balaji Garden-B, The South Indian Co-
op. Hsg. Society, Scheme-6, Road, Matunga,
Mumbai 400019

Sr. | Name of Promoter Address

No

1. | Godrej & Boyce Pirojshanagar, Vikhroli, Mumbai - 400079

Manufacturing Company
Limited

0) Names and addresses of the Directors and Promoters of G&B are as under:

Sr. Name of Director Address

No

1. Mr. J.N. Godrej 40-D, Ridge Road, Mumbai- 400006

2. Mr. A.B. Godrej Aashraye Godrej House 67-H, Walkeshwar Road,
Mumbai- 400006

3. Mr. N.B. Godrej 40-D, B.G. Kher Marg, 2nd Floor, Malabar Hill
Mumbai- 400006

4. Mr. V.M. Crishna A-261, Grand Paradi Apartments, Off August Kranti
Marg, Mumbai- 400036

5. Mr. A.G. Verma 902-B Fantasia, Raheja Garden, LBS Road Thane-
400604

6. Ms. Nyrika Holkar A-261, Grand Paradi Apartments, Off August Kranti
Marg, Mumbai- 400036

7. Mr. K.N. Petigara 801, Citadel, 18-B Ruparel Marg, Malabar Hill,
Mumbai- 400006

8. Mr. P.P. Shah 72A Embassy Apartments, 7th Floor, Napean Sea Road,
Mumbai- 400006

9. Ms. A. Ramachandran 2401-2402, A Wing, Raheja Atlantis, Ganpat Rao
Kadam Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai- 400013

10. Mr. K.M. Elavia 2A Anand Bhavan, 36" Road, Bandra (West)
Mumbai- 400050

11. Mr. N.J. Godrej 40-D, Ridge Road, Mumbai- 400006
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Sr. Name of Promoter Address
No.
1. Mr. A.B. Godrej Aashraye Godrej House 67-H, Walkeshwar Road,
Mumbai- 400006
2. Mr. A.B. Godrej, Trustee | 5™ Floor, Godrej One, Pirojshanagar, Eastern Express
of ABG Family Trust Highway, Vikhroli, Mumbai - 400079
3. Ms. T.A. Dubash 89 B, Hasman Bungalow, Bhulabhai Desai Road,
Mumbai 400 026
4. Ms. T.A. Dubash, Trustee | 5™ Floor, Godrej One, Pirojshanagar, Eastern Express
of TAD Family Trust Highway, Vikhroli, Mumbai - 400079
5. Mr. P.A. Godrej Aashraye Godrej House 67-H, Walkeshwar Road,
Mumbai- 400006
6. Mr. P.A. Godrej, Trustee | 5™ Floor, Godrej One, Pirojshanagar, Eastern Express
of PG Family Trust Highway, Vikhroli, Mumbai - 400079
7. Ms. N. Godrej 4501, Strata, Planet Godrej, K.K. Marg, Mahalaxmi
East, Mumbai 400 011
8. Ms. N. Godrej, Trustee of | 5™ Floor, Godrej One, Pirojshanagar, Eastern Express
NG Family Trust Highway, Vikhroli, Mumbai - 400079
9. Mr. N.B. Godrej 40-D, B.G. Kher Marg 2"¢ Floor, Malabar Hill
Mumbai- 400006
10. Mr. N.B. Godrej, Trustee | 5™ Floor, Godrej One, Pirojshanagar, Eastern Express
of NBG Family Trust Highway, Vikhroli, Mumbai — 400079
11. Mr. S.N. Godrej 40-D, B.G. Kher Marg 2" Floor, Malabar Hill
Mumbai- 400006
12. Mr. N.B. Godrej, Trustee | 5™ Floor, Godrej One, Pirojshanagar, Eastern Express
of SNG Family Trust Highway, Vikhroli, Mumbai — 400079
13. | Mr. B.N. Godre;j 40-D, B.G. Kher Marg 2"¢ Floor, Malabar Hill
Mumbai- 400006
14. Mr. N.B. Godrej, Trustee | 5™ Floor, Godrej One, Pirojshanagar, Eastern Express
of BNG Family Trust Highway, Vikhroli, Mumbai — 400079
15. Mr. N.B. Godrej, Trustee | 5™ Floor, Godrej One, Pirojshanagar, Eastern Express
of HNG Family Trust Highway, Vikhroli, Mumbai — 400079
16. Mr. J.N. Godrej 40-D, Ridge Road Mumbai- 400006
17. Mr. J.N. Godrej & Plant 11, 3rd Floor, Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing
Others, Trustees of ING | Company Limited, Pirojshanagar, Vikhroli, Mumbai
Family Trust 400079
18. Ms. P.J. Godrej 40-D, Ridge Road, Mumbai- 400006
19. Ms. R.J. Godrej 40-D, Ridge Road, Mumbai- 400006
20. Mr. J.N. Godrej & 40D, B.G. Kher Marg, Malabar Hill, Mumbai 400 006
Others, Trustees of The
Raika Godrej Family
Trust
21. Mr. J.N. Godrej & Plant 11, 3" Floor, Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing
Others, Trustees of Raika | Company Limited, Pirojshanagar, Vikhroli, Mumbai
Lineage Trust 400079
22. Mr. N.J. Godrej 40-D, Ridge Road, Mumbai- 400006
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23. Mr. J.N. Godrej & Plant 11, 3" Floor, Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing
Others, Trustees of Company Limited, Pirojshanagar, Vikhroli, Mumbai
Navroze Lineage Trust 400079

24, Ms. S.G. Crishna A-261, Grand Paradi Apartments, Off August Kranti

Marg, Mumbai- 400036

25. Ms. S.G. Crishna & Plant 11, 3" Floor, Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing
Others, Trustees of SGC | Company Limited, Pirojshanagar, Vikhroli, Mumbai
Family Trust 400079

26. Mr. V.M. Crishna A-261, Grand Paradi Apartments, Off August Kranti

Marg, Mumbai- 400036
27. Ms. F.C. Bieri A-261, Grand Paradi Apartments Off August Kranti
Marg Mumbai- 400036

28. Ms. S.G. Crishna & Plant 11, 3" Floor, Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing
Others, Trustees of FVC | Company Limited, Pirojshanagar, Vikhroli, Mumbai
Family Trust 400079

29. Ms. Nyrika Holkar A-261, Grand Paradi Apartments, Off August Kranti

Marg, Mumbai- 400036

30. Ms. S.G. Crishna & Plant 11, 3" Floor, Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing
Others, Trustees of NVC | Company Limited, Pirojshanagar, Vikhroli, Mumbai
Family Trust 400079

31. Mr. R.K. Naoroji Behla Court, 24, Ramchandani Marg, Apollo Bunder

Mumbai- 400039

32. Mr. R.K. Naoroji & Plant 11, 3rd Floor, Godrej & Boyce Mfg. Co. Ltd.,
Others, Partners, M/s. Pirojshanagar, Eastern Express Highway, Vikhroli
RKN Enterprises (East), Mumbai-400079

p) The Board of Directors of ICRPL approved the Scheme at its Meeting held on 29" January,

2018. Details of Directors of ICRPL who voted in favour/ against/ did not participate in the

Meeting of the Board of Directors are given below:

Sr. | Name of Director Voted in | Voted Did not
No favour  of | against the | vote or
the resolution Participate
resolution
1. | Mr. K.R. Mehta v - -
2. | Mr. P.K. Gandhi v - -
3. | Mr. P.E. Fouzdar v - -
4. | Mr. K.B. Master v - -
5. | Mr. B.N. Doongaji v - -
6. | Mr. G.V. Sampat v - -

q) The Board of Directors of G&B approved the Scheme at its Meeting held on 29th January,

2018. Details of Directors of G&B who voted in favour/ against/ did not participate in the

Meeting of the Board of Directors are given below:
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Sr. | Name of Director Voted in Voted Did not vote or
No. favour of against | Participate
the the
resolution resoluti
on
1. Mr. J.N. Godrej v - -
2. Mr. A.B. Godrej v - -
3. Mr. N.B. Godre;j v - -
4. Mr. V.M. Crishna v - _—
5. Mr. A.G. Verma v - —
6. Ms. Nyrika Holkar - - Absent, so did
not participate
7. Mr. K.N. Petigara v - -
8. Mr. P.P. Shah v - -
0. Ms. A. Ramachandran v - —
10. Mr. K.M. Elavia v - —
11. | Mr. N.J. Godrej v - -

r) Since there is no issue of shares pursuant to the Scheme, Valuation Report is not required

by the Transferee Company and the Transferor Company.

s) The proposed arrangement under the Scheme shall have the following effect:

With
(1)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

respect to ICRPL:

Upon effectiveness of the Scheme i.e. on Amalgamation of ICRPL with G&B,
there will be no issue of Shares to the Shareholders of ICRPL as ICRPL is a
Wholly-Owned Subsidiary of G&B.

Further, pursuant to the Scheme becoming effective, ICRPL shall cease to exist
and thus, the question of impact on KMP and Directors of ICRPL does not arise.
As stated in clause 10 of the Scheme, all staff, workmen and employees of
ICRPL who are in service as on the Effective Date shall become staff, workmen
and employees of G&B without any break in their service and on the basis of
continuity of service, and the terms and conditions of their employment shall not
be less favorable than those applicable to them with reference to their
employment with ICRPL on the Effective Date.

Under the Scheme, there is no arrangement with the Creditors of ICRPL. No

compromise is offered under the Scheme to any of the Creditors of ICRPL. The
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liability to the Creditors of ICRPL, under the Scheme, is neither reduced nor
being extinguished.

(v) ICRPL does not have any outstanding Debenture and therefore the effect of the
Scheme on any Debenture Holders or Debenture Trustees does not arise.

(vi) ICRPL does not have any Public Deposits and therefore the effect of the Scheme

on any Depositors does not arise.

With respect to G&B:

(1) There is no adverse effect of the Scheme on the Equity Shareholders (the only
class of the Shareholders) of G&B, the Promoter and Non-Promoter
Shareholders, the KMP, Employees and/or the Directors of G&B.

(ii) No change in Key Managerial Personnel is expected pursuant to the Scheme.

(iii)) Under the Scheme, there is no arrangement with the Creditors of G&B. No
compromise is offered under the Scheme to any of the Creditors of G&B. The
liability to the Creditors of G&B, under the Scheme, is neither reduced nor being
extinguished.

(iv) Under the Scheme, there is no arrangement with the Debenture Holders of G&B.
No compromise is offered under the Scheme to any of the Debenture Holders of
G&B. The liability to the Debenture Holders of G&B, under the Scheme, is
neither reduced nor being extinguished.

(v) Under the Scheme, there is no arrangement with the Depositors of G&B. No
compromise is offered under the Scheme to any of the Depositors of G&B. The
liability to the Depositors of G&B, under the Scheme, is neither reduced nor
being extinguished.

t) A Report dated 27" April, 2018 adopted by the Directors of ICRPL, explaining the effects
on each class of Shareholders, Key Managerial Personnel, Promoter and Non-Promoter
Shareholder is attached herewith.

u) A Report dated 27" April, 2018 adopted by the Directors of G&B, explaining the effects
on each class of Shareholders, Key Managerial Personnel, Promoter and Non-Promoter
Shareholders is attached herewith.

v) A copy of the Unaudited Financial Statements of ICRPL as on 31 January, 2018 is
attached herewith.

w) A copy of the Unaudited Financial Statements of G&B as on 315 January, 2018 is attached

herewith.
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x) This Statement may be treated as an Explanatory Statement under Section 230(3) read with
Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013.

y) Inspection of the following documents may be carried out by the Equity Shareholders of
ICRPL at the Registered Office of ICRPL on any working day (except Saturdays) prior to
the date of the Meeting between 10:00 am to 1:00 p.m.:

e Copy of the Order dated 8" day of May, 2018 of the Hon’ble Tribunal passed in
Company Scheme Application No 203 of 2018 directing the convening of the
Meeting of the Equity Shareholders of I[CRPL;

e Copy of the Scheme;

e The Pre and Post Merger Capital Structure and Shareholding Pattern of ICRPL and the
G&B;

e Copy of Memorandum and Articles of Association of each of ICRPL and G&B;

e Copy of Audited Financial Statements of ICRPL and G&B for year ended 31% March,

2017 including Consolidated Financial Statements, wherever applicable;
e Copy of Unaudited Financial Statements of ICRPL and G&B as on 31 January, 2018;
e Copy of the Register of Director’s shareholding of ICRPL and G&B;

e Copies of the Resolutions passed by the Board of Directors of ICRPL and G&B

respectively approving the Scheme;

e Copy of the Certificate issued by the Statutory Auditor of G&B stating that the
Accounting Treatment proposed in the Scheme is in conformity with Accounting

Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act;

e Copies of E-Form GNL-1 filed by G&B and ICRPL with the Registrar of Companies,
Maharashtra, Mumbai along with challan dated 12% day of May, 2018, evidencing filing
of the Scheme;

z) This Statement may be treated as the Statement under Sections 230(3), 232 and 102 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements
and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016. A copy of the Scheme, Explanatory Statement, Proxy
Form in MGT-11 and Attendance Slip may be obtained free of charge on any working day
(except Saturdays) prior to the date of the Meeting, from the Registered Office of ICRPL
situated at Godrej Plant 13, Annex, 2" Floor, Pirojshanagar, Vikhroli - East, Mumbai —
400079 or at the Office of its Advocates M/s Hemant Sethi & Co., 1602 Nav Parmanu,
Behind Amar Cinema, Chembur, Mumbai — 400071.

25



SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION
OF

INDIA CIRCUS RETAIL PRIVATE LIMITED (‘ICRPL OR ‘THE TRANSFEROR

COMPANY’)
WITH

GODREJ & BOYCE MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED (‘G&B’ OR ‘THE

TRANSFEREE COMPANY?)
AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS

UNDER SECTIONS 230 TO 232 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

(A) PREAMBLE

The Scheme of Amalgamation is presented under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for amalgamation of India Circus Retail Private Limited
(‘ICRPL’) with Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing Company Limited (‘G&B’). This Scheme also

provides for various other matters consequential to amalgamation or otherwise integrally connected

herewith.

(B) RATIONALE FOR THE SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION

ICRPL is engaged in the business of home décor products and supply of designs to third parties.
G&B, a part of the Godrej Group, is a diversified Company and is engaged in manufacturing of
locks, furniture (including mattress), construction, appliances etc. It is also engaged in the

business of offering innovative home and office interior solutions.

The Amalgamation of India Circus Retail Private Limited with Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing

Company Limited would have the following benefits:

Operational synergies with the existing business of G&B;

Elimination of multiple entities;

Reducing the multiplicities of legal and regulatory compliances;
Reducing time and efforts for co-ordination of financials at group level;
Elimination of duplicative communication and coordination efforts; and

Rationalisation of administrative and compliance costs.

(C) PARTS OF THE SCHEME

This Scheme of Amalgamation is divided into the following parts:

Part I Definitions and Share Capital;
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1.

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

Part I Amalgamation of ICRPL with G&Bj and

Part III  General Clauses, Terms and Conditions.

PART I — DEFINITIONS AND SHARE CAPITAL
DEFINITIONS

In this Scheme of Amalgamation, unless inconsistent with the subject or context, the following

expressions shall have the following meanings:

“Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 and shall include any statutory modifications, re-
enactment or amendments thereof for the time being in force.

“Appointed Date” means April 1, 2017.

“Board of Directors” or “Board” means the Board of Directors of ICRPL or G&B, as the case

may be, and shall include a duly constituted committees thereof.

“Effective Date” means, for the purpose of this Scheme, the last of the date on which all the
conditions specified in Clause 15 are complied with and the Scheme shall become effective.
References in this Scheme to the date of "coming into effect of this Scheme" or “effectiveness

of this Scheme” shall mean the Effective Date;

“G&B” or “the Transferee Company ” means Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing Company
Limited having its Registered Office at Pirojshanagar, Vikhroli , Mumbai - 400 079,
Maharashtra, India.

“ICRPL” or “the Transferor Company” means India Circus Retail Private Limited having
its Registered Office at Godrej Plant 13 Annex, 2" Floor, Pirojshanagar, Vikhroli East, Mumbai
- 400 079, Maharashtra, India.

“NCLT” means Mumbai Bench of Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal.
“Scheme” or “the Scheme” or “this Scheme” or “this Scheme of Amalgamation” means this
Scheme of Amalgamation in its present form or with any modification(s) made under Clause

14 of this Scheme as imposed or directed by the Hon’ble NCLT or such other competent
authority, as may be applicable.
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1.9

All terms and words not defined in this Scheme shall, unless repugnant or contrary to the context
or meaning thereof, have the same meaning ascribed to them under the Act, the Securities
Contract Regulation Act, 2013, the Depositories Act, 1996 and other applicable Laws, Rules,
Regulations, Bye-Laws, as the case may be, or any statutory modification or re-enactment
thereof from time to time.

DATE OF TAKING EFFECT AND OPERATIVE DATE

The Scheme set out herein in its present form or with any modification(s) approved or
directed by the Hon’ble NCLT or any amendment(s) made under Clause 14 of this Scheme shall
be effective from the Appointed Date but shall become operative upon coming into effect of

this Scheme.

SHARE CAPITAL
The share capital of ICRPL as at 315 March 2017 is as under:

Particulars Amount (In Rs.)

Authorized Capital

5,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 50,00,000
2,50,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each 25,00,00,000
Total 25,50,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital

3,85,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 38,50,000
2,30,00,000 6% Optionally Convertible Cumulative

23,00,00,000
Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each
Total 23,38,50,000

Subsequent to 315 March 2017 and till the Board of Directors approving the Scheme, following
is the Authorized, Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up share capital of ICRPL.

Particulars Amount (In Rs.)

Authorized Capital

5,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 50,00,000
2,50,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each 25,00,00,000
Total 25,50,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital

3,85,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 38,50,000
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2,50,00,000 6% Optionally Convertible Cumulative

25,00,00,000
Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each
Total 25,38,50,000

As on date, the entire Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Capital of ICRPL is held by G&B and its
Nominees. Accordingly, ICRPL is a wholly owned subsidiary of G&B.

3.2 The share capital of G&B as at 31% March 2017 is as under:

Particulars Amount (In Rs.)

Authorized Capital

11,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each 11,00,00,000
9,00,000 Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.

9,00,00,000
100 each
Total 20,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital

6,78,448 Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each 6,78,44,800

Total 6,78,44,800

Subsequent to 315 March 2017, as on date following is the Authorized, Issued, Subscribed and
Paid Up Share Capital of G&B.

Particulars Amount (In Rs.)
Authorized Capital

11,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each 11,00,00,000
9,00,000 Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares of Rs.

100 cach 9,00,00,000
Total 20,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital

6,78,445 equity shares of Rs. 100 each 6,78,44,500
Total 6,78,44,500

PART II
AMALGAMATION OF INDIA CIRCUS RETAIL PRIVATE LIMITED
WITH GODREJ & BOYCE MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED
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4.1

4.2

4.3

TRANSFER AND VESTING OF UNDERTAKING

Subject to the provisions of this Scheme as specified hereinafter and with effect from the
Appointed Date, the entire business and the undertaking of the Transferor Company including
all the debts, liabilities, duties and obligations of the Transferor Company of every description
and also including, without limitation, all the properties and assets (whether movable or
immovable, tangible or intangible) , land and building, leasehold assets and other properties, real,
in possession or reversion, present and contingent assets (whether tangible or intangible) of
whatsoever nature, all the debts, liabilities, duties and obligations of the Transferor Company
comprising amongst others, investments, freehold land, leasehold land, including capital work
in progress, registrations, permits, licenses, refund of taxes, if any, authorizations, if any, rights
and benefits of all agreements and all other interests, rights and powers of every kind, nature
and description whatsoever, privileges, liberties, easements, advantages, benefits and approvals,
shall without any further act or deed, but subject to the charges affecting the same be transferred
and/or deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company as a going concern
so as to become the assets and liabilities of the Transferee Company.

Provided always that the Scheme shall not operate to enlarge the security for any loan, deposit
or facility availed of by the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall not be

obliged to create any further or additional security thereof after the Effective Date or otherwise.

In respect of all the movable assets of the Transferor Company and the assets which are
otherwise capable of transfer by physical delivery or endorsement and delivery, including cash
on hand, shall be so transferred to the Transferee Company and deemed to have been physically
handed over by physical delivery or by endorsement and delivery, as the case may be, to the
Transferee Company to the end and intent that the property and benefit therein passes to the

Transferee Company with effect from the Appointed Date.

In respect of any assets of the Transferor Company other than those mentioned in Clause 4.2
above, including actionable claims, sundry debtors, outstanding loans, advances recoverable in
cash or kind or value to be received from other authorities and bodies and customers, the
Transferor Company may, if so required by the Transferee Company, issue notices in such form
as the Transferee Company may deem fit and proper stating that pursuant to the Hon’ble NCLT
having sanctioned this Scheme between the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company
under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act 2013, the relevant debt, loan, advance or other
asset, be paid or made good or held on account of the Transferee Company, as the person

entitled thereto, to the end and intent that the right of the Transferor Company to recover or
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4.4

4.5

4.6

realize the same stands transferred to the Transferee Company and that appropriate entries

should be passed in their respective books to record the aforesaid changes.

The transfer of assets and liabilities pursuant to Clause 4.1 above and the continuance of
proceedings by the Transferee Company pursuant to Clause 8 shall not affect any transaction
or proceedings already concluded by the Transferor Company on or before the Appointed Date
or after the Appointed Date till the Effective Date to the end and intent that the Transferee
Company accepts and adopts all acts, deeds and things done and executed by the Transferor
Company in regard thereto, as if done and executed by the Transferee Company on behalf of

itself.

With effect from the Appointed Date, all debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities, duties and
obligations of the Transferor Company, whether provided for or not in the books of accounts of
the Transferor Company, and all other liabilities which may accrue or arise after the Appointed
Date but which relates to the period on or upto the day of the Appointed Date shall, pursuant to
the Orders of the Hon’ble NCLT or such other competent authority as may be applicable under
Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 without any
further act or deed, be transferred or deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Transferee
Company, so as to become as from the Appointed Date the debts, liabilities, contingent
liabilities, duties and obligations of the Transferee Company on the same terms and conditions

as were applicable to the Transferor Company.

All the existing securities, mortgages, charges, encumbrances or liens, if any, as on the
Appointed Date and those created by the Transferor Company after the Appointed Date over
the assets of the Transferor Company transferred to the Transferee Company shall, after the
Effective Date, continue to relate and attach to such assets or any part thereof to which they
are related or attached prior to the Effective Date. Such securities, mortgages, charges,
encumbrances or liens shall not relate or attach or extend to any of the other assets of the

Transferee Company.

ISSUE OF SHARES

The entire Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Share capital of ICRPL is held by G&B. Hence,
upon the Scheme becoming effective, no shares of G&B shall be allotted in lieu or exchange of
the holding in ICRPL and, investment in the share capital of ICRPL shall stand cancelled in the
books of G&B. Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, the share certificates, and/or the
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7.1.

7.2.

shares in electronic form if any representing the shares held by G&B, and its nominees, in
ICRPL shall be deemed to be cancelled without any further act or deed for cancellation thereof

by G&B, and shall cease to be in existence accordingly.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT
G&B shall account for the amalgamation in its books as per the applicable Accounting
Principles prescribed under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 103 and/or any other

applicable Ind AS, as the case may be. It would infer alia include the following:

a) All the assets and liabilities recorded in the books of ICRPL shall be transferred to and
vested in the books of G&B pursuant to the Scheme and shall be recorded by G&B at their

respective carrying values as appearing in the books of ICRPL.

b) The identity of the reserves of ICRPL shall be preserved and they shall appear in the
financial statements of G&B in the same form and manner, in which they appeared in the

financial statements of ICRPL, prior to this Scheme becoming effective.

¢) The investments in the Equity Share Capital of ICRPL as appearing in the books of accounts
of G&B, shall stand cancelled.

d) Inter-Company balances, loans and advances, if any, will stand cancelled.

e) The difference, if any, being excess/deficit arising pursuant to the Scheme shall be

accounted based on the Accounting Principles prescribed under the Ind AS-103.

CONDUCT OF BUSINESS TILL EFFECTIVE DATE
With effect from the Appointed Date and upto and including the Effective Date:

The Transferor Company shall carry on and deemed to have carried on its business and activities
and shall stand possessed of its entire business and undertakings, in trust for the Transferee

Company and shall account for the same to the Transferee Company.

The Transferor Company shall carry on its business activities with reasonable diligence and
business prudence and shall not alter or diversify its respective businesses nor venture into any

new businesses, nor alienate, charge, mortgage, encumber or otherwise deal with the assets or
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7.3.

7.4.

8.2.

any part thereof except in the ordinary course of business without the prior consent of the
Transferee Company or pursuant to any pre-existing obligation undertaken prior to the date of
acceptance of the Scheme by the respective Board of Directors of the Transferor Company and

the Transferee Company.

All the income or profits accruing or arising to the Transferor Company and all costs, charges,
expenses or losses incurred by the Transferor Company shall for all purposes be treated as the
income, profits, costs, charges, expenses and losses as the case may be of the Transferee

Company.

The Transferee Company shall be entitled, pending the sanction of the Scheme, to apply to the
Central/State Government, and all other agencies, departments and authorities concerned as are
necessary under any law or rules, for such consents, registrations, permissions, licenses,
approvals, sanctions etc. which the Transferee Company may require to carry on the business

of the Transferor Company.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

If any suit, appeal or other proceedings of whatever nature by or against ICRPL is pending, the
same shall not abate or be discontinued or in any way be prejudicially affected by reason of or
by anything contained in this Scheme, but the said suit, appeal or other legal proceedings may
be continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against G&B in the same manner and to the same
extent as it would or might have been continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against ICRPL

as if the Scheme had not been made.

In case of any litigation, suits, recovery proceedings which are to be initiated or may / will be
initiated or continued by or against ICRPL, G&B shall be made party thereto and any payment
and expenses made thereto shall be the liability of G&B.

CONTRACTS, DEEDS, ETC.

On and from the Appointed Date and subject to the other provisions of this Scheme, all
contracts, deeds, bonds, insurance, letters of Intent, undertakings, arrangements, policies,
agreements and other instruments, if any, of whatsoever nature to which the Transferor
Company is a party and subsisting or having effect on the Effective Date, shall be in full force

and effect against or in favour of the Transferee Company, as the case may be, and may be
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9.2.

10.
10.1.

10.2.

10.3.

enforced by or against the Transferee Company as fully and effectually as if, instead of the

Transferor Company, the Transferee Company had been a party thereto

The Transferee Company shall enter into and/or issue and/or execute deeds, writings or
confirmations or enter into any tripartite arrangements, confirmations or novations, to which
the Transferor Company will, if necessary, also be a party in order to give formal effect to the
provisions of this Scheme, if so required or if necessary. The Transferee Company shall be
deemed to be authorised to execute any such deeds, writings or confirmations on behalf of the
Transferor Company and to implement or carry out all formalities required on the part of the

Transferor Company to give effect to the provisions of this Scheme.

STAFF, WORKMENAND EMPLOYEES

All the employees of the Transferor Company, if any, who are in service on the date
immediately preceding the Effective Date shall, on and from the Effective Date become and
be engaged as the employees of the Transferee Company, without any break or interruption in
service as a result of the transfer and on terms and conditions not less favorable than those on
which they are engaged by the Transferor Company immediately preceding the Effective Date.
Services of the employees of the Transferor Company shall be taken into account from the date
of their respective appointment with the Transferor Company for the purposes of all retirement
benefits and all other entitlements for which they may be eligible. The Transferee Company
further agrees that for the purpose of payment of any retrenchment compensation, if any, such

past services with the Transferor Company shall also be taken into account.

The services of such employees shall not be treated as being broken or interrupted for the
purpose of Provident Fund or Gratuity Fund or Pension and/or Superannuation Fund or any
other fund and for all purposes will be reckoned from the date of their respective appointments

with the Transferor Company.

It is provided that as far as the Provident Fund, Gratuity Fund and Pension and/ or
Superannuation Fund or any other special fund created or existing for the benefit of the staff,
workmen and other employees of the Transferor Company are concerned, upon the Scheme
becoming effective, the Transferee Company shall stand substituted for the Transferor
Company in respect of the employees transferred with the undertaking for all purposes
whatsoever relating to the administration or operation of such Funds or Trusts or in relation to

the obligation to make contribution to the said Funds or Trusts in accordance with the
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10.4.

11.

12.

13.

14.

provisions of such Funds or Trusts as provided in the respective Trust Deeds or other
documents. It is the aim and the intent of the Scheme that all the rights, duties, powers and
obligations of the Transferor Company in relation to such Funds or Trusts shall become those
of the Transferee Company. The Trustees including the Board of Directors of the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company or through any committee / person duly authorized by
the Board of Directors in this regard shall be entitled to adopt such course of action in this
regard as may be advised provided however that there shall be no discontinuation or breakage

in the services of the employees of the Transferor Company.

With effect from the first of the dates of filing of this Scheme with the Hon’ble NCLT and up
to and including the Effective Date, the Transferor Company shall not vary or modify the terms
and conditions of employment of any of its employees, except with written consent of the

Transferee Company.

SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTIONS

The transfer of assets, properties and liabilities under Clause 4 above and the continuance of
legal proceedings by or against the Transferor Company under Clause 8 above shall not
affect any transaction or proceedings already concluded by the Transferor Company on and
after the Appointed Date till the Effective Date, to the end and intent that the Transferee
Company accepts and adopts all acts, deeds and things done and executed by the Transferor
Company in respect thereto as done and executed on behalf of the Transferee Company.

PART I
GENERAL CLAUSES, TERMS AND CONDITIONS

DISSOLUTION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY
On the Scheme becoming effective, ICRPL shall stand dissolved without being wound up.

APPLICATION TO THE NCLT OR SUCH OTHER COMPETENT AUTHORITY

ICRPL and G&B shall make all necessary applications and/or petitions under Sections 230 to
232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the said Act to the Hon’ble
NCLT for sanction of this Scheme.

MODIFICATION / AMENDMENT TO THE SCHEME
ICRPL and G&B with approval of their respective Boards of Directors may consent, from time
to time, on behalf of all persons concerned, to any modifications/ amendments or

additions/deletions to the Scheme which may otherwise be considered necessary, desirable or
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16.

appropriate by the said Boards of Directors to resolve all doubts or difficulties that may arise
for carrying out this Scheme and to do and execute all acts, deeds matters, and things necessary
for bringing this Scheme into effect or agree to any terms and/or conditions or limitations that
the Hon'ble NCLT or any other authorities under law may deem fit to approve of, to direct
and/or impose. The aforesaid powers of ICRPL and G&B to give effect to the
modification/amendments to the Scheme may be exercised by their respective Boards of
Directors or any person authorized in that behalf by the concerned Board of Directors subject

to approval of the Hon'ble NCLT or any other authorities under the applicable laws.

CONDITIONALITY OF THE SCHEME

The Scheme is conditional upon and subject to the following:

(a) The requisite consent, approvals or permission of the Central Government or any other
statutory or regulatory authority which by law or otherwise may be necessary for the
implementation of this Scheme

(b) The Scheme being approved by the respective requisite majorities of the members and
creditors of ICRPL and G&B as required under the Act and as may be directed by the
Hon’ble NCLT.

(c) Obtaining the sanction of the Hon'ble NCLT by ICRPL and G&B under Sections 230 to
232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions thereunder.

(d) The certified copies of the Orders of the Hon’ble NCLT sanctioning the Scheme, are filed
with the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra, Mumbai by ICRPL and G&B,

respectively.

EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF APPROVALS/ SANCTIONS

In the event of any of the said sanctions and approvals referred to in the preceding Clause not
being obtained, and/ or the Scheme not being sanctioned by the Hon’ble NCLT or such other
competent authority, and / or the Order not being passed as aforesaid, and/ or in the event of
this Scheme failing to take effect, before December 31, 2018 or such further period as may be
agreed upon between ICRPL and G&B by their Board of Directors (and which the Board of
Directors of the Company are hereby empowered and authorized to agree to and extend the
Scheme from time to time without any limitation) this Scheme shall stand revoked, cancelled
and be of no effect, save and except in respect of any act or deed done prior thereto as is
contemplated hereunder or as to any rights and/ or liabilities which might have arisen or accrued
pursuant thereto and which shall be governed and be preserved or worked out as is specifically
provided in the Scheme or as may otherwise arise in law.
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17.

COSTS, CHARGES AND EXPENSES
All costs, charges, taxes including stamp duties, levies and all other expenses, if any (save as
expressly otherwise agreed), of ICRPL and G&B incurred in carrying out and implementing

this Scheme and matters incidental thereto, shall be borne by G&B.
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Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing Company Limited

STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the period ended 31st January, 2018,
(UNAUDITED)

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY
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Director
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Goclef & Boyoe M. Co. L8
GODRE! & BOYCE MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st IANUARY, 2018
(UMAUDITED)
{Rupees in crore)
Note Asat Asat
30208 3332007
ASSETS
{1} NOM-CURRENT ASSETS
(=) Proparty, Plant and Equipment 24 182957 186145
(b} Capltal Work-in-progress 2A 51r.38 411.09
{c) Investment Praperty 28 25307 25857
(d} Other Intanglble Assets 24 a47 2.40
(2) Inangilde Assets under deveiop 2A 1445 14.45
{f) Finandial Assets L
{13 in Subshdiari d Jodnt Vemture 3 15861 153.17
(1) Other Invastments 4 635184 523075
(81) Trade Recelvahles 5 . 744
(W) Loans & g 3551
(v} Other Firancal Assets 7 179
51040 LA
(&) Deferred Tax Assets (Net] 21 632 [ %
(h) Other Non-Curment Assets 8 1653 i7.08
(2) CURRENT ASSETS
{a) inventorias 9 222522 2,053.91
{b) Fingncial Assets
{1} Imestments n 01z 678
(if) Trade Recehvables 1 246176 1,988.12
(N} Cash and Cash Equivalents 12{a) 1536 n.m
(v} Bank Balancas other than [ll]) abave 12{8) 12628 7971
(v} Loans 13 17867 8142
(v} Other Anandal Assets 14 2414 454,85
() Current Tax Assets {net) 8331 56,02
(d) Other Current Assets 15 2,097.70 256.80
7.167.56
Tozal Assets 13
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
{1} EQuITY
(2] Equity Shars Capital 16 678 678
(b} Other Equity 17 9,222.58 7,755.38
822936 )
UABILITIES
(2} NON-CLIRRENT UIABSLITIFS
(a) Financil Liabilites
I} Borrowings 18 1,228.93 113830
(i} Other Financial LiabilRties 13 194 95 294,87
b} Provisions 20 106.18 66,92
153006 1.490.09
[3] CLURRENT LABILITIES
[a) Financlal Liabikties
{1) Borrowings n 80952 1,183.30
{#) Trade Payables 23 1,847.70 111150
(i) Other Financlal Liabikities 24 68243 74649
- EEELT- — 3paL®
{b) Other Current Uiabilities 5 221677 7015
{) Provisions 6 .

Total Equity and Liabiftties

Nartes o the Financial Sttements.
mmgm:meﬁﬁ

&

- CERTIFIED TRUE COPY
For Gothey & H;nn.: Miy. Co. L,
Dircgor
¥ For Goarel b Bowe Mig Co. Lid,

i

Director
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GODREI & BOYCE MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31st IANUARY, 2018

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
OTHER INCOME
TOTAL INCOME

EXPENSES
(1) Cost of Materials consumed
(2) Bxcise duty
13) Purchases of Stoek-in-Trade
mﬂ-pshhmdesofﬁmumm-hm
and Seock-in-Trade
{5) Property Devel and Constructh
{6) Employee Benefits Expense
{7} Finance Costs
(&} Depreciation and Amartizstion Expense
15 Other Expanses
110 Less: Expendin 5 to Capital
TOTAL EXFENSES

FROFIT BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS AND TAX

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
PROFIT BEFORE TAX.

TAX EXPEMSES
(1) Current tax
(2) Prior years' tax adjustments
{3) Deferred tax change/fcredit)

PROFIT / (LOSS) AFTER TAX FOR THE YEAR

mmmmmm
Mems that will not be reclasstfied 1o Profit or Loss
n of defi loyes b L
uminhrwmunmmmm
() Deferred tax chargef{credit) on above
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
TOTAL COMPREHENSTVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE
Basic and Diluted Eamings per Equity Share of Rs. 100 each

E T Significant g Policies and
Nates to the Anandial Satements
The

i i notes are an integral part of the financal statements

Rote

27
28

Eelidpy

21
P18
21

135

Carrent Year

733185

Unamtiod Frmnciel Stragmac:

_|Rupees in crone)
. Praviows Year

8,502.33

B2.34
740405 So0LLT

3,501.47
67459
2,18255

113231)
5498
L1166

CERTWIED TRUE CORY

For Godrej & Boves Mig. Co, Lud

MW For Gogryj H;l:'l-a Mig. Co. (ag,

Direcior
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Soda) & Bever M. C. il

GODRE! & BOYCE MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES |N EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD EMDED 315t JANUARY, 2018

(A} Equity Share Cagital

Ballance &t the beginting of the year
* e

Uty e g The vaar
Balarics at the and of the year

{8} Other Equdey

Bolaecn as a2 £3/00/ 21 E

Profit for the year

For o in aqulty
Deferred tax credit on ems of DO
Tor the year 2016-17

At s bination

Transfer from Imvestment Sutsldy Resarve

Intarim Equity d déurng
Dividend Distribution Tax (BOT] on mterim Dividend
Balance as a1 31/0/2007

Profh / {Loss} after tax for the year

Deterred tax tredit on fems of OC1

for the year pariod
Ivtarim Equity S g e
Diviiend Distribartion Tax [OBT) on lrtexim Dividend
Balonoe a8 ot 31/01/301K

s

The W g Py

{UNAUDITED)
{Rupess In crore}
Mote  Fortheyesr ended Far tha year ended
Y201 31mp017
673 663
- 045
% E.73

:
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Unawefiead Fimsockol Stwterments

GODREJ & BOYCE MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31st JANUARY, 2018

{UNAUDITED)
: (Rupaes In crore)
Curment Year Previaus Year
A CASH FLOWS FROM DPERATING ACTIVITIES
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6042 182158
Amlsmzmm RECOMCILE PROFIT BEFORE TAX TO NET CASH USED IN:
; i Amoriizetion Exp 16153 17862
for Deytef, /Degs 5745 20,88
Profit on Sale of Investments (Net): Non-camrent - 1114733
Profit on Sole/Assignment of Foeed Assets (Wet): Other Fixed Assots & 139
Unreglized Forsign Curvency {Gain}/Loss {5.63) {3137}
Interest nopme {12.5¢) [9.20)
Dividend Income: (48.23) (65.45]
Finance Costs 8.2 175.84
Fair Valuation of inestments - 154.76
Reclassification of acturial loes to Other Comprehensive Incoma 4 e 6.5
DPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 37730 oy
BMOVEMENT I CURRENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES:
iventories {13137 1267.58)
Trade and other Reeeivalbles (L541.44) 1312.53)
Trade and other Payables 183572 587,52
CASH GENERATED FROM/{USED R4} OPERATIONS 530.77 AE0.HE
Dirert Taxes paid 42.29) (44.42)
HNET CASH FROM/{USED IN] DPERATING ACTIVITIES 48848 41643
B CASHFLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTWVITIES
MMHMM} [22.86] {B36.46)
[ and 358.12 58223
mmm-nnmmwmmm-dmmmam (4657) {17.95)
fram a wholly d subsidiary on Its Houid - .52
Interest ncome 129 2.10
Dividend income: 4823 GR.4%
HET CASH FROM/{USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITES 14288 6.23
€ CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITEES
mwmmnmmm {607.73) 5747
Other Bormowings: Fresh Loans and Dep (s9.82) 2,003.26
memmnmlu .-.suo 22768}
Imterest pald (167.17) amm
Dividend pald, incuding Dividend Distribution Tax _(12248) (“7.49)
HET CASH FROM/TUSED) IN ANANCING ACTRATIES (6a320)
MET MCREASE/{DECREASE} N CASH AND CASH EQUNMALENTS jAviec) (1184} 684
Cath and Cash Equival beginming of the year 2120 8
{hmwmmnmawmﬂhmr 1536 27.20
Adel: Other Bank Bak ' sh and cash equivatents)
Fiudumsammhuu 5700 57.00
Other Earmarked Accounts 271 227
CLOSING CASH AND BANK BALANCES (NOTE 17) 10691
. COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR
Cash in hand 139 13
Ealances with Banis in Cumrent Accoums 581 58
NOTES:
1 mmmﬁmﬂwmmmmhwmmwmmmhhmmu‘mmw»ﬂh
'Slmatolhmﬂws' d cath fiows by g and fin activities,
2. Flgures f o vear b g o mmﬂmnﬂmmam
3. Figuresinb o/
4. Cash and cash for the f this ef cash in hand, cash at barnk and fixed depasits with
maturity of three momsths or less.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIRCANT ACCOUNTING POUICIES

A. General Information
am&mmwm&mgﬂeo«wlmummmmz is a major company of the
smmm-mmmmmmmmuuuamd office, and Indh ducts and

refated senvices of the highest quality 1o customers In india and abroad. The Company Is domiciled In India and Is registered office
s ot Pirojshanagar, Vikhroli, Mumbai 400073,

B. Bask of accounting
mmulmmm:a;mfwhmmmmm,nmmmmmmmmm
{“Ind AS"] issued under the G lindian sarcis) Rules, 2015 as diod by C
(idiany 8 5} { 1) Rules, 2016,
The accounts have been prepared on accrual and gotng concern basis.
£ Fanetional and *
Mﬁmmdmmmhmmmkhh, ¥'s fi I All have been
rounded 1o the nearest crore, unless otherwise indicated; a crore is equal to ten million.
. Uses of Estimates and ludgements
The prep of financial in mmnmmmu-mwmmmmmm
whmwmmm«murmmmmmﬂuwmmeﬁmdmﬁnuﬂtmdlm.m
actual lised may differ from th i
I} Determination of the estimated uswful bves of tangible assets and th as to which comp of the cost may
be capitalzed.
Useful ves of tangible assets arm based on the life ibed in Schedule Il of the € Act, 2013. In cases, where the

uurulmmdmmmmnmmanqareu-ummummmmmmm
nmﬁhmhﬂmﬂmﬁmmhmmmdhmmmmmm
tiip hnokogical changes, T 5 and support. Assumptions also need to be mada,
mmmm.Mmmmumunnndemm«ﬂummn
capitallsed,

F management's estimate of the useful life of the fixed asset is shorter than that emvisaged In Schedul l, de; s
pmaammmuwsmummnw.hmﬂmmm
mmmmmsmmﬁwahmmmkmma:huhqmunm
usefud life of the assets at 5 years, compared to 15 years specified In Schedule IL. In respect of additions
MMMMWMmmmudummawnuthmMdsm
NMMMMm%Mnmmmmlandwmmwﬂ
l.:ndandmlldn;:naMMMMWMMMMMMMmmewmelM

balance sheet date Is disclosed under capital work-In-progress, ible ssssts of Technical Know-how and
mm-mmwseammummmm“«mmmmmwsmnmmmmm
ERP system, are on straight line basis ot the rate of 20%.
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{li} Recognition and of it obilg:
The obiigation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the besis of wphions. Key il
mmmmmmnwhmwmmwmbemﬁum&w.m rate is
mmum»mmnmumaum-m bonds. The period to
the f

o y of the post N Fv bl

of

L to the p
(1) Recognition of deferred tax assers
A deferred tax asset ls for all the porary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
MtquwMuﬂM&mMmhﬁM.hmmmmm
taable profits will be ¢hite gnising 1an assers.
(L] g and f other
The and of other p are based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow of
and on past and d known at the balance sheet date. The actusl outflow of resources at a
mmmmmmmw@mu-mm
) D ng of lnng-term f ¥
Al fi Iab are req to be d 3t fair value on initlal recognition. In case of financial liabiities which are
quired to subsequently be cost, interest s accrued using the effective intarest method,
{¥1} Datermining whether an srrangement contaims o lems
At inception of an arrangement, the Company determines whether the sor ins @ lease. At Inception or on
of an ,, that contains a lease, the Company and other 0
wmcmmmmmlmhmmmmbmdemmmeﬂlmﬁﬁe
Company conchudes for a finance lease that it Is imp o the pay reliably, then an asset and a liabikty
are recognised at an amount equal to the far value of the undertyl asset; subsequently, the fability is reduced = payments
ammbandwhpmdhmmmhhbllwkwudmhgmcomny'simmhmmurumh

case of g lease, all pay der the ane treated as lease payments,

{vH) Rebates and sales incentives
Rebates are lly provided to ar as an Incentive to sell the Company's Rebates are
mmmmmmannmhm;mmmwmﬂmmdm
accruals primarily based on the contracts entered into with their ! and the informati for
sales made by them.

{will) Fair value of financial instruments

mmﬂmawwmmmwmwc«mwnmmmnr
muwwmmmmc«mmmmwmuwummwmm

merchant bankers. Fair value of Interest Rate Swap d with respect to current market rate of interest.
E. Standards issued but not effective

In March 2017, the Ministry of Carporate Affairs issuad the C p [inckian ) (i )

Rules, 2017, nobifying ol to tnd AS 7, * Stal of Cash Flows' and Ind AS 102, * Share-based payment’,

m-md-munmpmmummmmmumzm.
Themdmn:wlmms?Mﬂmmmpmummﬁm“ﬁmwmmmw
evaluate changes in Rabliiles arlsing from Fi includi changes arising from cashfiows and
on-cash changes, suggesting fa b the opening and closing bal Inthe
hhm:mmﬂlbmmmmmmmhdwmwm
ﬁthlndMlﬂmmﬂmnmmmMMdmmmd
mmmmmm-ummmmumumumu
that the fair value of cash-settf; di ined on the b with that used for equity-settied
awards, The amendment clarifies that If the terms and conditions of a cash-settled share-based transactions
are modifled with the result that it becomes an equity-settied share-based payment transaction, the transaction is
accounted for as such from the date of the modification. Further, the amendment requires the sward that include
qmmmmmﬁmlummhMummmm.mm
Ppayment Lo the tax authority is treated as if it was 2 part of an equity settlement.

The Co b . the effect of the above di
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F. Measurement of fair values

The Comparny g policies and discl equire th of fair for financial i

The Company mummmmmﬁmmmummmnmnmmmm
reviews significant b ble inputs and vahsti: ] I third party inf 1, such a5 broker quotes or pricing
maushmwummmmumummmmmﬂﬂmmm
the | that such val meat the regqul s of fnd AS, incl *,mlmmmurauhmmm;u
valuations should be classified.

mmumﬁrmwaﬁmmwahmmummusaohumﬂenmdmaiwu
posshhl’nhmluesnremImmmhahkwmmmhmeduhhmmlnmvﬂm
technigues as follows:

Lewe! 1 : quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets f | assets or liabilities.

M?:lnpmwmmmIndu\ledlnmllﬂmmmhthmwmmeﬂudmhn

prices) or Indirectly (l.e. derived from prices),

Level 3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on ok ble market data {unot e inputs).
I'hheIlummdInmeaunﬂmﬁlrwlmdmmwahﬂwﬁlmmmamur_m,munh
whmwkmhkwmhmmmMmeﬁinhnldemvasﬂielamludlmmb
significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers mmmummmmmmammuuuummuumwau-
change has occurred.

G. Significant accounting polides
L. Property, plant and equipment
@ Recognition and measursment
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured 3t cost less accumulated d and any larved
Impairment bosses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and
a) ummlwnmwndmuwmﬂgmmmmwummm
rebates.
b) mvmdrmmweum;Mn-ﬂbﬂmheaﬁnmﬂmnﬂimmfartlnhmﬂﬂeof
g in the manner by
I d exp refated to the incid P not necessary to bring the tem %o the location and condition
y for it to be capable of g in the manner ded by are ised in profit or oss.
Irmllmmdmmum,ﬂmmm»mmﬁwmlmmmqmmhrn
p Hems (major comy t5) of property, plant and equipment.
Am'nhnrlaesmdswsld-lh-ndwrw,nlmwwhmlsmlnMwm
All property, plant and ived in exchange for nonetary assets are d at fair value unless the
b tion lacks b or the fair value of neither the d nor th given up is
reliably of an exchange at fair value will result in the recognition of a gsin or loss based on the

carrying amaunt of the asset surrendered. I 3 fair value can be determined rellably for either the asset received or the asset
glven up, then the fair value of the asset given up should be used unless the fair value of the asset recelved is more dearly

evident. Accordingly, Transfersble Development Rights (TDR's) by the Company i ct of its freehold lands
llhmu‘!nIllumhai,aleurrhdnlirwﬁhﬂmmmmhiwhmmkmnm»mw
~are shown under Freehold Land. Any gain or g h exchange i In Ty In profit and loss.
Any transfer of such TDR's / land from flsed asset to inventory Is done at cost.

b. Subsequent expenditure

b penditure is capitalised only IF It is probable that the future benefits inted with the expendit
will flow ta the Company,

. Depreciation

The Company has followed the Straight Line method far eharging depreciation on all items of Fined Assets, at the
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rates specified in Schedule i to the Act; these rates are the: mini b Hmnmm
of the useful e of the fived asset is shorter than that aged In I, deprech a
higher rate based s -‘mumeﬁ.ilh.md\rhmmwhmm
consiruction projects, an some ftems of equip at is provided ata higher rate
based on useful iife of the assets est at S years, wﬁmM«thle
me,hmnfmhkpmmhewundh- ract: g of T d
systems, depreclation Is charged over the period of such mamufacturing In ot of
additions tofdeductions from the assets, the d on such C fated on a pro rata basis
ﬁmvmwnmmmhafwd:mwwmmmlmmnummammnm
year of Land and Buildings ver the perlod of the lease. The cost
of fixed assets not ready for their d use at th sheet date Is dlisch urkler capital work-in-progress,
Intangible sssets comprising of Technk ! Know-how and Trade Marks are amortised on stralght-line basis at
the rate of 16.67%; [« Software costs relating to the ERP systam, are amortised on stralght
line basis at the rate of 20%.
Investment properties
amwmmmmmuummhm yas In its Indian
GAAP financial transition date, viz,, 15t April, 2015.
b | perties are mulyatm"*, casts. Subsequent to initial el
I prop staled at cost less iation and k loss, if any.
. The cost includes the cost of replacing parts g nE-term jects If the recognition
criteria are met. When significant parts of the iny property are required to be imls.uecm
dep th : ¥ based on their specific usefu lives. All other repair and mal sts are
profit or loss as incurred,
d. The Company follows the straight line method for ch ging dep in perty over useful
Hves prescribed in Scheduls Il to the Companies Act, 2013,
e. Though the Company Ty using cost based the fair value of party
is disclosed in the notes.
. Im d  eith they have been df d af or when thy [ ¥ withd
memmmWemuwmwdmLmum L the net disposal p
mummdh:mkwmummmhmmad«m
Intangible assets and goodwill
a. Recognition and measurement
Intangible assets, including patents and Erad which y the Company and have finite useful fives are
at cost less ac y 1 Impai losses.
b. Subsequent expenditure
Subseq diture s capitali y whent i the future benefits embodied In the specific asset to
which It relates. All other expenditure, including diture on k By goodwill and brands, s recognised In
profit or loss a5 Incurred,
. Amortisation
Intangtble assets are amortised over their useful life ethod.
ok , Joknt Vs R
Non-current I submsidiard iates and jaint are stated 2t cost (unless otherwise stated);
however, for any diminution other than ¥ In the value of » the book value Is reduced
umﬁumummmmmmnﬁmmammmm”mm
thelr fair values, the the value of such | Is dtobeafa y nattre, in view

of the Company’s long-term finandsal Involvement in such investse campanies.
Finenclal Instruments

A financlal Instrument is any contract that gives rise to 3 financlal asset of ane entity and a financhal liablity or equity
Instrument of ancther entity,
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a. Financial assets

{I) Classification:
The Compary shall classify fnancial assets as sub quently d ax ised cost, falr value through ather
cwehmlmem&%ﬁmmwﬂulmmhbmdmmmﬁhmw
financial assets and the il cash flow of the financial asset.

{ii) Initial recognition and measurement:
Equity investments
(=) All equity lvestments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are fair value. Equity which are held for
Mnmanmm-mmmmmmwmmw=m at FVOCL The
classification is made on initlal recognition and is irrevorable.

(b} Al fair value ch the clud dMﬂlndsmuwmdlnﬂtemmtmmﬁ
the amounts from OC to praftt and loss, e of | H the Campany may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity.
u)mmmmhmm-m»mmmmmaf*wmmmmmwn
the profit and lass.

b, Financial llabilities

1 Classification
The Company dassifies all liabiiities at t, except for financhal
liabilities at fair value through profit or foss. Such abikities, shall be sub y at fair value.

{if} Initial recognition and measurement
Fi k t init; gnition, as financlal liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans

All financial liabitites are recognised Initially st fair value and, in the case of loans snd barrowings and payables, net of
o ¥

directly attrib cost.
Amortised cast is calouk bry taking it di p on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an Integral part of the Eflective interest Rate (EIR). The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement
of profit and loss,
The Company’s finanial liabilities include tratde and ather payatiés, boans and b s Including bank draft
financlal and derk finandial

{i) Derecognition
A financial liability is d when the obll under the liabllity is dischanged or cancelled or explres. When

an exsting financial liobility &s replaced by anather from the same Iengder on substantially different terms, of the

terms of an existing lisbility are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification s treated gs the

derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new wnmmmmmm
Is Inthe of prafit or loss.

1 Bk et
L=

The Campany uses derh financlal | such as forward oy hedge it Foreigr Y
rigks . Such derivative finandlal in itially recognised at fair value on the date on which & derivative
contract s entered into and y re- at fair value, Derivatives are carried as fi
mmwmupnmnandammhummﬁemrMhm‘
W. imentodes
Trade inventories:

Raw Materials, Loose Tools, Stores, Spares, etr. are valued at lower of weighted average cost and estimated net
realisable value.

mmmmmcmmns}kmnmdmam{wmuudum
material and direct labour costs phis P fattory ds) and esti d net value,
Finished Goods are valued at lower of average cost and estl d lisable value; cost includes purch

factary any taxes or dutles and other costs incurred for bringing the
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inventaries to thefr present location and conditlon, Spares and Components for after-sales service are valued at
lower of tand I

"
value,

Obsolete and damaged Inventories, and other anticipsted losses are ad h , wh
necessary.
Construction Projects:
In respect of the co J projects d / developed on th ¥'s lend, work-in-
gress Is valued at esti g of the cost of land g part of the project], devel i
and other refated costs.
Wik Cash and cash equivalents
(Cash and cash i the bak h oubmlwd,hnkhlﬂmmdﬂmmdmmmurﬁni
mamm«mmummmmmmmmmﬂmmhnm
Far the purpase of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash eansist of cash and sh deposits, as defined
above,
will. Barvowing costs
g costs that are directly attributable to th tion of an asset th ik

x

period of time to got ready for ifsintended uss are capitalised as part of the cost of that assct Wl the date £ i readly for ts
intended use or sale. Other costs are p in the period In which they are incurred.

nd Uakilitles and Contl Assets
A provision is recognised only when there s 3 present abfigation as a result of a past event that probably requires
InmﬁmmwhmﬂhmdMBMMmhmmk

i 1o Its p and is Monmmmwmmmwmmm
the balance sheet date. A for a conting lability & made when there is a possible obligation or a
present obligation t ¥, but probably whl not, requl stfiow of When there is a possible
b or t obfigation In respect of which the likelihood of cutfow of Is remote, Ash
disclosure i made.
Provisions and Contingent Liabilities and C: Assets are revi balince sheet date. Comtingent
Assets and related incame ised when It b ibly certaln that inflow of rill arise.
A for onerous Is the present value of the lower of th corst of gthe
and th ] f continuing with the Before a pravision is axtablished, the Company
any Impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract.
Revanue Recagnition
(2) Sale of goods
The Company recogni on the sale of products, net of f=, sales i d ek d
Sales are rhen significant risks and rewards ip In the goads are transferred to the buyer,
are when coll ility of the resulting recehvable is
Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the ved net of
returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates,
{b) Lease Rentals:
The group has d that the to the lessor to increase in line with expected general
Inflation to for the leszor's it ¥ cost i A dingly rental income arising from
operating leases on prop is d for on an accrual basis as per the terms of the lease contract
dis ind In revenue in th of profit or lass due to Its oparating nature.
() Revenue from 2t For lnd: d { equi

spedficalty with customers, Contract
mummmmwmaeummawmmummwmwmm
mmwmmmtkmmmnmmmwmumm.
I the of a constr hdwm,mmwbmhmu
mhmwhmdmﬁwm&.ﬂewof is based on p tage of actual
costincurred up to the reporting date to the total estimated cost of the contract. Otherwlse, contract revenue is
mmmmmmummmhmlmwhemm
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Contract

o as incurred unless they create an asset related to future contract acthvity, An
expected loss on 2 contract is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

(d) Revenus fram rendering of services

Revenue from service transacians is ised s per /s with the customer when the

related servi d fprovided. IF the senv a single B derad In different reporting

periads, then the consideration is allocated on & relative fair value basis,

Sales of goods and services involve the provicion of multiple e In these cases, the Company

determines whether the contract or iy th unit of If certain eriteria are

met, fi deli d el “hum]mwumnnammmm.wmm
d and the o revenue Is then appi h seg unit of 8.
Iy, the total 1 all to the s of ting based on their relative

Tair values. if the criterla for the f units of g are not met, revenue s deferred until such criteria

are met or until the period in which the last undeliverad element is delivered.
{f) Rewenun from Real Estate Transaction:

L The "Py of Completion Method™ of g is foll vh from sale of properties is
recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss in prop 1o the I a5 tatal estin cost
oimmwmmmfammnwnwwmmmnmkandmmmmmwmm
31, 2012 revenue was ised onty If th l project cost 20% or mare of the total estimated project
cost.

#i. Effective April 1, 2012, in tl with the "Guidk Mote on Accounting for Resl Estate Transactions (Revisad

2012)" |Guidance Mote), all projects commencing on or after the sald date or projects which have already
commenced, but where the revenue is recognised for the first time an or after the above date, Construction revenue

on such prajects have been recogr tage of compl methed provided the following thresholds have
been met: fa) All critical app ¥ for the have been obtained; (b) The d

i don nd develog costs i than 25 percent of the stimated and
development costs; (c) At keast 25 percent of the saleable project area | d by with

buyers; and (d) At least 10 percent of the agreement valug Is realized at the reporting datein respect of such
contracts and it Is reasanable to expect that the parties to such contracts will compgly with the payment terms as
defined in the contracts.

. mm&mmmmmhﬂmmm or after the sald date or projects
hich have already but where the revenue i recognised for the first time on or after the above date,

have been o it d in d with the "Guld Note on Accounting for Real Estate Transactions (for antities
towhom Ind AS is apphcablel®. Princiol Ao hote is sub dy simitar to th -
on forreal estate Issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India [ICAI] In 2012,

iw. Income fro f gnised over the tenure of the lease / service agreement.

(s} Loyaity programma

Sales Is allocated between the loyalty and the oth of th ™

il d to the loyalty prog: is def and ks recognised as revenue when the Campany has fulfilled its
bligations to supply the di P under the terms of the pragramme of when it s no longer probable

that the points under the programme will be redeemed.
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. Employee benefits

amnmmmgmmmmhmmammmm}
Short ployee bensfits are the related service is provided, A Rabifity for the amourtt
expected to be paid if the Company has a p legal or bl to pay th 25 a result of
past servi ded by the employee and the abligation can be estimated rellably.

b. Defined contribution plans
Obligath tributions to defined tion plans the related sarvice s p
The R id/payable to M 1 5up Fund, Emph PR
MWPMMMMMMMH i the relevant

schemes and/or statutes, and are recognised as expense in the Statament of Profit and Loss during the period
in which the employea renders the related service. There are no further obilgations other than the

mtributians payable 1o the authorities
c. Defined benefit plans
The Company's net ohllgation in respect of defined benefit plans is ¥ for each plan by e

the amount of future benefit that emplayees have carned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount
and deducting the far value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projectad unit
credit method.

Re-measurement of the net defined | ility, which i gains and lasses, the return an plan
assets (encluding interest) and the effect of the asset cefling (If any, excluding interest) i

OCL. Net interest expense (incame} on the net defined lability (assets) is computed by applylng the discount rate,
used to measure the net defined liability [asset], to the net defined Nability (asset) at the start of the financlal year
after taking into aceount any changes as a result of cantribution and benefit payments during the year. Net Interest

expense and other exp to benefit pl recognised in profit or loss.
Whmhbmelludaphuﬂdmsadwwhmaﬂmlamhmulﬁgmmhmmudmh
past service or the gain or lass on I Is ised immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises
galns and losses on the settl of a defined ¢ when the sett, oecurs.
However, the Rules of the Company's Provident Fund {PF) admi by an app Trust, require that if
the Board of Trustees Is unable 10 pay interest at the rate declared for the s' Provident Fund by the

Government under para 60 of the Employess” Provident Fund Scheme, 1952, for the reason that the return
on investment i less or far any other reason, then the deflciency shall be made good by the Company.
d. Other long-term emplayes banefits

Thecomw:nmmmwofw loyee benefits is the offi benefit that

empioyees have eamed in retumn for thelr service in the current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to

daumhehMm.mnmmmmmmmhwuﬁlwmmuwinmuwm.m
dovee benefits include | ) Pk :

uil. Finance income and finance costs
The Company’s finance Income and finance costs inchute, Interest income, Interest expense, dividend
Income, the foreign currency gain or loss on finandlal assets and fnancial fabilities.

Interest income or expense is recog; using the eff i ividend income is profit or
less on the d: hich th npany’s right to receive payment is established.

iil. Foreign curmency transactions
L Y assets and o in foreign les are lated into the functional ¥ at g
matﬁemmmﬂmmymwmmuemundllhkmtammmﬂ

lated into the functional y at the mmma&uuwmm.wm

mlumnmﬂhmwimhpuﬂtwhnmmmmwuummilmdw:m
d: a forelgn Y, are rep using the escch rate 3t the date of the tfransaction.

xiv. Incoma Taxes
Income tax expense comp deferred tax. itis recogr peofit or loss encept to the extent that it relates o
a busi or iterns recognised directly In equity o in OCI,
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.

&. Current tax
WWNWMMMMw bie on the taxable in loss for the year and any
to the tax pay In respect of previous years. it § d using tax rates enacted
mmmmnmummmtunwmlmmmmmmm
Current tax assets and fiabilt ffset only if, the ©

{1} has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and

{il} intends either 1o settle on a net basls, or to realise the asset and settle the lizbility simultaneusly,
b. Deferred tax

tax is pect of y differences b the carrying f and
for financial reporting and the for taxetion purp fi tax is not for:
munpomymnmmmlnlﬂ of assets or in @ ransaction that is not a business
Wammammmﬂmmmwm
(i} temporary differences related 1o | in subsid ta the extent that the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and It is probabl that they will in the
foreseeable futurs; and
{mmwummmummmdwmarm

tan assets are d 2 losses, unused tax eredits and deductible temporary differences to

mmmnkwﬁhmm«m profits will be available against which iwmbnmufeuedm
assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that It ks no | nger i

tax benefit will be realised; mmmnmnmmmﬁmwﬂhﬂmw

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are d at each g date and d to the that it has
WMMMWWMHUNWWMMMMM

ferred mx is at the tax p to be applled to temporary differences when they
reverse, using tax d or suk y enacted ot the reporting date.
T of def tax reflects the that would follow from the manner In which the

t«mmnmmmmmummammummwwm
Defemed tax assets and liabilitles are offset only if:
2) mmm:mwmmwmmmmmwmmtmmmm
b) lhedeiuruduam-wmanMWlmmummwmunmmnmmw
the same taxable entity,
Deferred tax asset { labilities in respect of v differences whict and reverse during the tax hollday
period are not recognised. mwmfu%nmﬁmmmmmuummm
mmmtutmmmmmmwu- i d tax ik
mm-mrwmwﬁemmmum inty supp A vid of their
realisation and on other items when there is of mumkmuNmm
mumnMaumemmwmummrmMMMm
halance sheet date.
Minimum Afterriate Tax MAT] Credit Entitiement is recognised as an asset anly when and to the extent there Is
mmmmwmmmnmwmumummmmnuam:m

can be carrled forward for set-off. The carrying of MAT Credit Entith at each balance sheet date,
Leases {where the Company Is the lessor)
I its Estate Leasing op , the assets subject leases are In Iy y. Lease

income is recognised inmsammtdmm and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. om;,lnmu
dewm;mmd @ an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Initial direct costs such as legal casts,
ge costs, ete. are ised i fl: inthe f Profit and Loas.
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wel. Product Y exp

der service abligation
In respect of products sold by the Company, which carry a specified warranty, future costs that will be incurred by the

Company in carrying out its tual ¥ d for basis.
=i, Research And Developmant Expenses:
A pendio ining to h and d itls charged to Sta of Profit and Loss under the
natural head of Caphal di reh and devel s shown as additlon to Property, Plant and
Ei and d s de such assets a5 applicably
wvill. Esmings per share

Basic and difuted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/{inss) after tax by the welghted average
number of equity shares autstanding during the year.

ax. Segment Reporting
Operati are rep 2 manner with th porting pravided ta the Chief Operating
Decision Maker.

H. Transition to Ind AS reporting

As stated in Note 18, the C ¥ for the year ended 315t March, 2017 are the first annual financial

with Ind AS.
The: adogtion of Ind AS was carrled out in accordance with Ind AS 101, using 1st April, 2015 a5 the transition date. Ind AS 101
requires that all lnd AS standards that are effective for the first Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2017,
be applied consistently and retrospectively for all fiscal years presented.

Al applicable Ind AS have been applied P y wh The resuiting diference between the
caHrying amounts of the assets and labilities in the financial statements under bath Ind A5 and Previous GAAP a5 of the Transition
Date have been recognized directly in equity at the Transition Dete.

In preparing these financlal the G availed itself of cartaln d I vith

Ind AS 101 as eeplained below:

il from pplicati

{3} Property, plant and equipment, in property " The Company has electad to apply the
exemption available under Ind AS 101 to continue the carrying value for all of its perty, pl i i
properties and intangibles as recognised in the financlal staternents as at the date of o Ind ASs, d as per

the previous GAAP and use that as its deamed oSt as at the date of transition (1st A, 2015).
(b} Derecognition of financial asssts and finandal llabilities: The Company has opted to apply the exemption avaliable under Ind

A5 101 to apply the di itfon criterta of Ind AS 109 p far the ring on or after the date of
transition 1o Ind AS.
e} d ' m&whadmﬂhwﬂrﬁempﬁmwﬂl&hmunmw
continue the carrying value for its | i d d property, plant and equipment, as
g the &s at the date of transition to Ind ASs, measured as per the previous GAAP as at the
date of transitlon (1st April, 2015).
(i} The following [ .mnmﬁmmdwmmmmﬂn
from Previ APt Ind AS in with ind £5 101:
—&quity as at 1st Aprll, 2015;
= equity as at 31st March, 2016;
—tatal comprehensive i for the year ended 31st March, 20185; and
lanation of material adj cach flow
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1A PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Rupees In crore)
Tangible Assets e
Frochold  Lemsshold  Freebold Lomsshold  Plncl Furnibee B Vehices o Total
Particulars Land land  Suldings  Dulings Equipment  Asures  Vessels Equipment
COST OF ASSETS i
Gross Block s ut 1747 3070 8949 osmm 17.88 ___2i7ane
Capltal Woarkin-Progress as at . 2 5 = e
1/4f2m7 o
Capital Bxpend e during the year 1443 L5} L6
Caphtnl Work-in-Progress as st
buis/ams Lo o
Additions (o) 50 L1
Deductions. [ihh] = =
Gross Block as 5t A1/4/2018 30052 LT ] T8I 1828
DEPRECIATION
Total Depraciatior upto 31/3/2017 148 e LB
Depreciation for the year 196 n5 205
Depredstion on Dedudions = -
Total Depreciation upte 314,/2018 RS 53.84 636
WET BODK VALUE
bet Block as at 3171/2018 30052 BEIS  6B4AS 1353
Capteal Work-n-progress 1441 - 38800 -
Total as st 3/1/308 11453 B0 107245 1333
fhie Assets (other than internall o
Gooawil Technil Trademarks|
Software Enaw-bow
(COST OF ASSETS
Gioss Block as 3t 1/4/2017 &ER 0.8 LEE]
Additens 010 -
Creductions - -
Gross Block as ab T1/172018 678 nee [EE]
AMCRTLZATION .
Total upta 31/3/2017 as 08s 008 | 53T
Charge Far the year 185 [:ETY 0oe 203
Caductions - -
“Total Amartlmtion uptn 31/1/2008 - .28 100 o1z
MET BOOK VALUE [
Asat 31/373008 450 15.04) o 047
(Capial Work-In-progress 1845 - 1445
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L.B. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

COST OF ASSETS

Grass Block as at 1/a/2017
Additions

Deductions

Gross Block as at 31/1/2018

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
Total Depreciation upto 1/4/2017
Depraclation for the year
Depreciation on Deductions

Total Depreciation upto 31/3/2018

NET BOOK VALUE
Net Block as at 31/1/2018
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(&) Subsidiary companies

Equity Shares 70.76 70.57
Pref Shares/Pref Stock 4759 4559
11B35 116.16
{b} Assoclate companies
Equity Shares
Common Stock 36.84 2359
Contribution towards Capital of an LLP 267 .67
3951 36.26
{¢) Jolew Venture company
Equity Shares 0.75 075
OTHER INVESTMENTS 635184 523075
UNQUOTED INVESTMENTS AT AMORTISED COST
(1} In Equity Sharesin direct Subsldiary C
(1) 5,050 Equity Shares of Rs.100 each in Godrej Infotech Ltd. 105 105
(i) 3,85,000 {as at 31-03-2017: 2,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 039 0.20
I India Circus Retail Private Ltd,
i} 48,723 Equity Shares of 55 10 each in Godrej [Singapore) Pe. Ltd. 24.83 24.83
[W] 58,170 Equity Shares of £ 46 esch In Veromatic International BY., the
Netherlands [excluding diminution (other than parary) in the value of
mamnmmmamwmwhm”m 4763 4263
1¥}3,00,000 Shares {"common stock with na par value") of Godrej
Americas Inc. USA. 185 186
7076 057
{2) in Equity of Joint \
(117.50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each In Godre] Consoveyo Logistics
Automation Ltd. [formerly Godra] Efacec & Ld.) 075 75
(3} Investments in Equity Shares of Assocates
IBMnm:ml%NQNM?:mMMMmm
Electric Power Inc,USA [17,75,385 (a5 at 31-03-2017: 16,21,539) comman
units @ 3.25 per unit] 684 135
(#)1 in Prefi of Subsidiary C
mzmmu-naa&m?:mmmﬂmmm
Hon-Cumul Reds hie Prefi Sh of Rs.10 each
in India Clrcus Retall Private Lid. 25.00 300
i} 6,70,221 Series A Prefermed Stack shares of par value $0.001 each
In Sheetak Inc., USA 671 671
(1} 5,42,506 (as at 31-3-2015: 5,80,004) Serles B Preferred Stock
shares of par value 50.001 each in Shestak Inc.,, USA 15.88 15.88
4753 4553
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{5) Investments In Limited Liability Partnership Firms
(1) Contribition towards 50% of the Fixed Capital of Godra] & Boyce
Enterprises LLP*

(W) Contribution towards 20% of the Capital of Future Factory LLP
{Inchuding share of profit of Rs. Nil crere booked during the year;
previous year: Rs.0.55 crore)

1{2) Total capltal of the Firm: Rs. 2,67 crore
{b} Names of other Partriers and % share In Capital:
Mr. Jashish Navin Kambli - 56%
Mrs. Geetika Kambli - 24%
*{Amount fess them Rs.50,000)
Tatal Unquoted Non-current Trade Investments

C DISCLOSURE

(a) Aggregate tof Uinquoted Im

(b} Aggregate: f Impaimaent in the value of In
{a) QUOTED

Imvestments in Equity Shares (Fully Paid up unless stated otherwise)
[At Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income}:
{1} 5,00,07,630 (as at 31-03-2017: 2,50,03,815) Equity Shares of
Re. 1 each in Godrej Consumer Products Ltd. {2,50,03,815 Bonus sharss
ssued during the year}
[if) 1,06,50,688 Equity Shares of Rs. 5 each In Godre] Properties Ltd,
i} Nl {as ot 31-03.2017: 46,85,576) Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each in HCL

Technologles Ltd. {28,31,393 shares d of Bush
Und of erstwhile G Lt with HOL Technolegies Ltd., in
exchange of 1,21,75,000 shares held In erstwhile G L1d. by the

Company. Mareover, 18,55,583 shares received in exchange of
79,79,008 shares held by Godre] Investments Pyt. Ltd., which merged
with the Company from the appointed date of 29th March, 2017.)

v} 12,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each in Central Bank of India

{v) 52,590 Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each in Housing Davelopment
Finance Corporation Ltd,

(i) 68,565,666 Common Shares of par value USD 0.001 in Verseon
= usa iy d during the year 2015-16 at a total
cost of Rs.100.57 crores)

Total Quoted Non-current Non-Trade Other Investments

{b) UNQUOTED
(1} Investments in Equity Shares
(1) 50 Equity Shares of Rs. 50 each in Godre] & Bayee Employees’
Co-operative Consumer Soclety Ltd.*
(&) L,00D Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each in Super Bazar Cooperative Stores Lid.*
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267 267
267 267
15861 53.47
e
15861 15317
526680 4179.14
85472 41054
3 209,99
008 013
10.28 790
7380 8588
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33/01/2018.

(Fil} 1,000 mmmaumuﬁlnmmnmnmm ooz
(Iv) 4,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 25 each in The 2 Co . 010
{v} 2 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each in Brihat Trading Private Ltd.* -
{vi) 100 Eqwﬂwelofkmuchlnﬂmﬂ_aﬂnmleﬂslﬂ.
(5h not been reg In the Company’s name) 0.10
{vil) 1,823 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each in Edayar Zinc Ltd, (arstwhile
Binani Zinc Lid}- At Book Value® -
{vill] 15,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 1,000 eisch in Global Innovation and
mmuummmmmydms
of the Companies Act, 2013)
(k<) 84,375 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each in Nimbua Greenfield (Punjab) L.
(x) Contribution towards 19.61% of the Capital of Probasds Inc., USA
(25,000 shares of par value USD 0.01)

(2} Imvestments In Preference Shares

(1) 2,01,54,008 7% Red Pref Shares of Re. 68 mach in 30PLM

Saftware Solutions 1td. (1,21,75,000 shares received on amalgamation of

Remaining g of Ltd. with 3DPLM Soft
Snwmw,hmmﬁmimmmwmmsmmm

Iy the Company. M . 79,79,008 shares recelved In exchange of 79,79,008

hares held by Godrej M. Lid., which merged with the Company

from the appointed date of 29th March, 2017.) [Refer item {a} (I} above] 137.05

£ &8

Asat
31/03/2037

0.02
0.10

0.10

150

&
B

Total Unquoted Non-current Non-Trade Other Investments 146.07

“[Amount fess thon Rs.50,000) SE

. DISCLOSURE
{a} Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments and market value thereof 6,205.77
{b) Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments 14607

(c) Agaregate amount of Imp in the value of -

MNotes:

1. Pursuant to g passed atan ¥ general meeting, of the Compamy:

tl]ﬂlumhﬂmdwﬁmmh&ﬁﬁlwmlﬁ[ﬂ&mtm

to Vora Soaps Lid. - a group company - without consid T and (b}

9,35,00,000 shares held by the Company In Godrej Consumer Products Ltd. {GCPL) were

transferred to Godrej Seeds and ud.-a group company - without

consideration,

Consequently, the Company is ne langer the holding company of 6L, GCPLand their
pecth i Hence, GCPL and Godrej F Ltd. (a

- y of God| i td.} at the end of the year are classified as Other Equity
instruments.

2. The thres wholl-owned (i2ms 1li, iv, and v) have been amalgamated with
m.mmmmmmmmmmwuum
therein have been ad} against ¢ | [Not= 50 {v}].
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7.

Mon-current | in Sub d Joint Vi are stated at cost
lunbess otherwise stated) as per Ind AS 27; hawever, for any diminution, other than
temparary in the value of Investments, the book value is reduced ise the dedline.

In cases where these investments are carried 3t their book values, which are higher than
m&rmm-Mnmhmmdmwumuum
mmmn,hhdﬁemmmlmllmmm
Investes companies.

As gt Asat
31/01/2018 31/m3/2017
TRADE RECEIVABLES
Unsecured and considered good - 744
i d dered doubth 13846 13846
Less: Allowances for doubitful receivables {238.46} {128.45)
Total - 744
LDANS {Unsecured, Considered Good)
{n] Deposkts - 939
{b} Other Loans and Advances 0.04 612
Total _ﬂ# 3551
(i) Other Loans and Ady include non nt of adh
and deposits made.
OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
(a) Other Non-current Assets - 179
- 179
m—
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Capital Advances 1653 17.06
Total ~ 1653 17.06
T ——
|wmlmuwnuummq
{a) Raw Materials 32591 394.94
{b) Work-n-Process 566.29 38496
Add: | in stock p b b = 130
|c} Finlshed Goods 61181 619.42
Add: Increase in stock pursuant to business combinations - 033
{d) Stockin Trade 431.08 33499
{e) Spares and Campanents for after-sales senvice 11696 83.88
{f) Stores, Spares, ete. 28 6,11
{g) Laose Toals 041 218
{h} Construction Work-in-Progress (Property Development
Acthvity and Projects for Industrial Products / Equipment) 162.90 245.20
{includes Rs, 45.30 crore of FSI purchased during the year 2016-17) :
Total 223522 2,093.91
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A e ML L LS TP FIAET TETT FU - SENes 25

(K} 3,859 units of Templeton India Short Term Income Fund -G

(i) 5,00,000 unkts of ICI0) Prudential Captial Protection Orlented
Fund Serfes V Plan D(1100D)

(i) 10,00,000 units of ICICT Prudential Captial Protection Orlented
Fund Serles Vi (11000)

(¥} 10,00,000 units of Redlance Dual Advantage Fixed Tenure Fund V

(vi} 15,00,000 units of Rellance Dual Advantage Fixed Tenure Fund Vi

(b} Unquoted Investments in Tax-Free Bonds
11} 1,236 National Mighway Autherity of India Bends of Rs,1,000 each
Total
(a} Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments and market value thereaf
{bj Aggregate amaunt of Unquoted Investments

TRADE RECEIVABLES
Urszcured, Considered Good

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

(A} Cash and Cash Equivalents
(i} Balances with Banks on Current Accounts
{1} Cash on Hand

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents

(B} Bank Batance other than above

[ Deposit A (Earmarked for tary Deposit
Repayment Reserve Account net of amounts utilised for
repayment of public deposits)

(ii) Other earmarked Accounts

Total Bank Balance

Total

LOANS (Unsecured, Considered Good)
(a) Advances Recoverable
Total
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= 058

. 131

- 0586
110

- 115

- 174

B 664
012 012
012 76

- 664
012 012
ZAGLTE 1,998.12
1394 2581
142 139
1536 720
88,50 57.00
_zm 271
13628 79.71
14164 106.81
178,67 8142
17867 8142




14, mwmmm[mmmmm

|a} Due from Gadrej Vikhroli Properties LLP In respect of salefassignment
of iImmovable property

{b] Deposits

{c) Derhvative Assets

{d) Unbilled Revenue

Total

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS {Unsecured, Considered Good)

{a) Advances to Suppllers

(b} Batances with Customs, Central Exclse, Part Trust and other Authorities
{c) Prepaid Expenses

{d} Unamortised Guarantee Commission

{e) Other Current Assets

Total
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Asat
= 10893
24.14 2067
* 10.80
% 354.45
2414 454,85

—

19359 BB.72
1,76095 8172
1636 1738
176 176
65.04 81.32
203770 756.80
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16. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

() Authorised:

(i} 1,100,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 100

(1} 500,000 Redeemable Pref: hares of Rs. 100 each
{b} Issued, Subscribed and Pald Up:

678,443 Enuity Shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid up
(1) The Company does nat have any haldi

17, OTHER EQUITY

(8) Capital Reserve 5284

5284
{b) Securities Premium Reserve 20,08 2008
(c) Ganeral Reserve 64585 4585
[d) Debenture Redemption Resenve 2083 83
le} Retained Earnings 257LE1 110439
1f) ttems of Other Compreheansive Incoms 531107 591107
Total 5,221.58 1, 75536

18, NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS
{a) Secured Ny {NCDs}
1) 8.90% (3 Years) 2019 Series | Debentures (alloted on 01/03/2018)
{11} 9.00% (5 Years) 2021 Series Debemtures {sllcted on 02/03/2018)

() Secured Term from Banks and

i from The o Bank Ltd. 316 - 150 152
3 346 - 2.50 252

{c) Unsecured

(1) Interest-free Loans under the Sales Tax Deferral Scheme of Maharashiea
State Government

{T) Fiead Depostts

Total
1) Privatety-y issued bry the Company by a first ranking change by way of 2 reg tgage on th i
of the situated at Mumbal Thess NCDS are red ible 5t par on 22-04-2019 {serles 1)
end 22-04-2021 (Series W). Interest on these NCDs s payzble V. Az par {Share Capitsl and Debantures)
Rules, 2014, para 18{7), th P g ate @ Deb Red [ of 25% of the value of debentures;
it Is also required to invest 15% of the amount of is deb ing during financial year. The y has
crexted @ debenture redemption ressrve of fs. 20,88 crore,

() Term Loan from The Co Bamk Lad. | d bry weay of of specified ¥ and equir
nwnsannmmumdmmmmuuumm;mmuaaammmuxpa.m
Bank's Minimum L of 12.50% p.s., subject f 5.00% p.a. and & of 12.50% p.a,, and ks repayable in
8 rhy r of Rs. 0.68 crore each and last Instaliment of Rs. 0,56 crore starting from 20-06-2017 and
ending on 24-03-2018).

{IE) Term Loan from HDFC Ltd, by fi af specfied iy bl

It carries 3 floating interest rate of 12.75% pa. (12.90% p.a. as at 31-03-2015; 13.10% p.a. as at 31-03-2015), which it 4.75% p.a.
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Below HOFC-CPLR of 17.65% pa. This loan i ully repaid on 31-03-2017.

(] the Sales Ta f § Stah & payable i I
Instakments as may be prescribed in the Schames, b from 21-04-2017 and continuing upta '21-04-2023.
) Fined Deposits fr ‘mwmmmmmmM.hMﬂumHeMkU
half-yearly, and have & maturtty period of 3 fram the ctive dates of depostt.
v} © of Long-term Barowi disclosed under the head *Other Current Financial Lisbilides” (Note 24)
(Rupees in crore]
- ma
Ympms. 31j0a/017
19, OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
{a) Dealers’ Deposits 4183 3958
{b) Sundry Deposits and Advances 152.41 129.13
(¢} Other Liabltties R 8 13057
(d) Rent received In advance - 5.55
Tatal 154,95° 294.87
u|mﬁymmmm:muz‘.nucmwnnmv:m.nm hand- of p Bndtoa
public wiifity, and {b) Rs. 0.75 crore {as Bt 31-3-2016: R, 0.75 crore] received against Land acquired. These amounts hai
niot been adj th view of s,
(Rupsss in crore)
Current Provisions Non-current Provistons
As st Asat Asat Asat
301200 31/E/2007  BION20IE 3140312017
0. NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS. -
1) Provision for Frae Sarvies under Product Warrantles - 24.10 6050 37
{b) Provisian for Employee Benefits. - 7.32 I
Total : = E2T)
21. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS / LIABILITIES AND TAX EXPENSE
1A) INCOME TAXES (Rupaes in crore)
{2} Amounts recognived In Profit and Loss
Particulars

Current Income tmc 107.00
Deferred Income tax (net]

———
Tax expanse for the year 11141

Flupees 8 crore)
/2018 For the year ended 31/03/2017
Neloftx Beforstax Tax{openss)  Netotar
benefi:

f defined benefit plans
Falr valuation of investraents in equity shares

(651} fa.56}
£,228.85

422629 {2.00] 4,334.29
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{c} Recondifiation of effective tax rate {Rupens In erore)
Purticutars Cument Year  Previous Year
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 2091 4573
T efioct of:
Tan impact of Income not subject to tax {2091} {221.42)
Tax Impact of expenses sublect to tax
Impact of BOIC
Tax effects of amounts which ! Incoy
i on foreign currency portof foeed sssets
ufs 144 of exp
| for f prior period
Others
Tax Expense Recognived
i ”mllﬂ'ﬂmﬂ.mmm
MOVEMENT IN DEFERRED TAX BALANCES
Movement during the
Particulars Net balance
03/04/2017 I profitar
losy
Deferred tax assets / (Rabllities)
Property, plent and equipment 155.00)
Provision far I 70.00 -
Enpenditure scorusd but disallowed & to be.
clalmed in future on payment basis (438 tems) :
Leawe Encashment Provision 15.00
Enclse duty i
Kolkatta Branch Entry Tax 200 -
Debtors and cost of goods sold -
Unbilled Revenue and work-In-process
Others (0.13)
o husiness 4.37)
of d #it Liability 357
Fair valisation of Investmants 0.06 -
Tax Adjustments of prior years. - 4.58
(6287 358
MAT Credit Entitlement 7019 -
Deferrad Tax Assets / [Liabifties) 6.3 4.58
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TWISION TOr !
Expenditure accrued but disallowed & to be
claimed in future on payment basls (438 hems) :

The Company offsets tax assets and iabilities I and only if it has a legally right to set off d
uummmmummmn:mmﬁmwm“mmwmmwmm

[ d in determini for incame tax, defermed ncome tax assets and Rabilitias
admmbmmde&udmwmﬂummudwbmnemmnm“mmuum
Income in which the rek and th d tich deferred

As on 31-03-2017, the ility pact o the divid PrOp ks Rs. Nl (as at 31-03-2016 : Rs, NII)

(Rupaes In crore)
_faat e s

CURRENT BORROWINGS

{a) Secured
(1) Working Capital Facilities from Banks (Het)
) Export Cred) & wport Bank of India under a revalving credit Iimit

U] ] | from Banks by a first charge by way af hypoth of
¥ STy ging from 9.00% pa. to 10.25% p.a. and are generally
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mmmmmmﬂmmﬁmnmmwﬁuqmmnmﬁm
p Huiated at Mumbai. They Girry an interest rate of 8.75% pa (sxchuding interest
of 3% and yable/ ibie sftor 180 days,

T D fel L £

¥ of 8:50% p.n. to 9.00% p.a. payable
monthly and quarterly, and have a maturity perod of 3 months or & months from the respactive dates of
depostt; and include deposhs from an associats Godre] Investments Pyt Ltd.: Ry, 75,69 cror (8s &t 31-3-2016;
Rs.109.36 crore; as at 31-3-2015: Re.44.59 crare],

v} Deposits from Shareholders have a maturity period of 3 manths from the respective dates of depasit, and
camy an interest rate of 8.75% p.a. payable at the month-snd and &t maturiy.

¥ In respect of Negotiable G Paper, bafs dirg durlng the year was Rs. 800
crore (Previous Year: Rs, 325 crore).
mwmﬁmlﬂumnmmmdimwmumﬂmmm
1 monthf12 months.

i} Cther s ara Buyers Credit from Banks, dus and payeble in fansign currency, and carry interest
rates ranging from 1.35%to 1.51% pa.

23, TRADE PAYASLES {Current)
“mw“ d l |Refar 1 below)
{b) Gther Trade Payables
{c) Due to Related Partes
Total
Motes:

() Mo Interest during the year has been paid or paysble under the terms of the MSMED Act. The above

ek Ea o

during the year.

24. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LABILITEES
{a) Current of lang-term
(b} Intarest accrued but not due on barrowings
{c) Employes benefits payable
{d} Unelalmed Fieed d b 4 d

{Note 18]

the Company on the basis of infi

(2] Dertvative Lability
() Other financlal Kabikties
Total

25. DTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
{a) Advances from Customers
(b} Statubory dues Induding provident fund and tax deducted at source
(c} Deferred Revenue - [Services and Salas incentive Schem]
Total

made availabde by vendors

) There d % to be credited to the Imvestor Education
4 d, inresp 4 burt 4
and any unclaimed interest.
(I} Other Payables include accrued and areditors for

26. CURRENT PROVISIONS
(a) Presvisian far Free Service under Product Warranties
(b} Provision for Employes Benefits
(e} Proviston for Loss on Onarous Contracts
Total
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(Rupees in crors)
‘CurrentYear  Previous Year
27. REVENUE FROM DPERATIONS
{a) Sale of Products 718497 8,962.70
(b) Sale of Services 112 21680
Net Sales (Products and Services) ‘7,186.09 9,779.59
(c) Other Operating Revenue:

{i) Scrap Sales 50.82 67.37

) Leave and License Dues and Rent 2154 2298
{lif} Export Incentives 921 10325
{iv} Sundry Receipts 24.29 § 2064
Revenue from Operations T 733195 9sooda

28. OTHER INCOME
(a) Interest Income [on financial assets carried et amortised cost}
(b} Dividends from Subsidiary Companies
{c) Other Dividends:
{d) Profit an Sale of Current Investments (Met)
{e] Share of Profit in a firm (LUP)

{f) Fair valuation of investments in mutual funds
Total

29. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
Stocks of Raw atthe of the year
Add: Raw quired g busin
Add: Raw Materials purchased during the year
Less: Sale of Raw Materlals

Less: Stocks of Raw Materials at the dose of the year
Total
i} Raw Materials purchased during the year are after taking credit for Miscellaneous
Sales of scrapped materials

30, CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF ANISHED GODOS, WORK-IN-FROCESS AND
STOCK-IN-TRADE
(a) Stocks ut the beginning of the year:
1} Finished Goods
Add: Increase In stock pursuant to business combinations
i) Work-in-Process 43514
Add: Increase In stock ta busingss binati
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‘Godve) & Bayoe Mfiy. G L,

{b) Less: Stocks at the end of the year:

(i} Finished Goods s Lma2e
Add: increase in X o busin “I"'" 044

(W) Work-in-Process T Rag
Add: Increase In stock 0 busiy i & Lod
116125 142548

i 23134 (145.62)

S e Soots (3.95) 1331

Ot 22739 133.31)

31. EMPUDYEE BENERTS EXPENSE
(a) Salaries, Wages and Bonus i@ 3
(bl c y to Employees” Provident and other Funds s 4 e
(c) Company's Employees’ Gratulty Trust Fund iz 45
{d) Workmen and Staff Welfare Fxpenses 478 4090
51 Vokimary - AL 025
Total

32. PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT AND CONSTRUCTION EXPENSES (COMMERCIAL PROJECTS)
(1) Construction Work-in-Pragress at the beginning of the year

70,56 15435
{b] Add: Project Expenses incurred during the year:

o e 7o uzm
{1} Employee Remunerstion and Benefits HE S
(W) Professional Charges 3 or
[iv) Purchase of TOR " R
M 164 3448
2493 14553
{€) Less: Construction Work-In-Progress at the end of the year 3524 245,30
Toud 6025 5498

____

33. FINANCE COSTS
{8} Interest an Term Loans and Debertures
{b) Interest on Fied Depostty and other Unsecured Loans
{c) Dther Interest costs.

{d) Less; Adj for Interest Capitalised

(&) Finance Charges

{0 Net (gaini Torsign ¥ furansl {atwrib to finante costs)
Tatal

_165.23 17584
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Annuel Repert end Accourts 301715

{Rupees In crore)
Current Year  Previous Year

34, OTHER EXPENSES

(a) Stores, Spare Parts and Other Materials consumed
(b} Power and Fuel

{c) Rates and Taxes

(d) Insurance

(e} Repairs and Maintenance of Bulldings
mmnmwwmdumy
(g} Technical Fees

{h} Royaity

{1} Rent

{i) Establishment and Other Expenses

(k) Danatians and Cantributions

() Matar Car and Lorry Expenses
lmlm‘lmm:ndndhr\!chrga
{n} Advertisement and Publicity

{0} Commission

{p) Professional Fees

() CSR Expenditure

[¥) Bad Debis/Advances written off

{s} Provisions for Doubtful Debrts

{t) Provision for Free Send der Product
{u) Logs on Sale/Disposal of Fised Assets [Net)
Tatal

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
{3) Prafit on Sale of Nan-cutrent Investments z 1473
{b) Transfer of in subsidi
{c} Adj carrying value of upon receipt of In HCL Technol

L&d, and 3DPLM Software Solutions Lid., in exch i in
Lixd. [Reder Note a{al{il) and 4{b}{2)]. 2
{d) Profit on Sale of TOR 266
266

Tatal Z 3 EE 2]
Note:
Pursuant to a resal passed at general meeting of the Company:

(1) the entire halding of 19,39,04,681 shares (book value Rs. 257.77 crares] In Godrej Industries
Ltd., was transferred to Viora Soaps Ltd. - 2 p i with ich
and

Broup

(1] 9,35,00,000 shares (book value Rs. 223,48 crores) held by the Company In Godraj Consumer
Froducts Lid, were transferred to Godre| Seeds and L. -a roup -
‘without consideration. The carrying value of the Investments transhsved to promaoter group
companies as aforesald, has been charged to the statement of profit and loss {item V of the
Statement of Profit and Loss),

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY

n

For Godrsj & Baves n_.Eu. Co. Ltd.

’“Gw&a Miy. €,
WMM L Mg Co. Lag,

Director
Firector o
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ne) -
[——— [y Py H
el 73 - S
ASSETS
B Mon-turreat ssiets
1] Property, Plant 2nd Equlpmant 3 6:109,508 187063
s} : . 22580
([s] | Other IndangThle gasery 3 - 311153 497,965
i) Aizots
(0 [Trade Recobables %
B Jiows. . - 4 5635210 6,050
() |Shertierm Losns snd Adances. 10 11848 Leizisg
5] Decamad ta asots {net) 5 3,836 2
0 (ither Assats 1 = 5
2 | Currant sscais .
[ [ [esserics s 1527551 7,399,066
] (Finsncisl Asats - 5 :
7 747439 5822507
8 2,772,768 ‘B RELETS
b # 6,014,580
bl 389,223 1M1
1 o734 1580733
e Lt T T
z 3,850,000, 3,850,000
a3 4,753,346 72473078
209,749,274 221,645 456)
LUABILITIES
el Mon-curvent Exkilites
(2} Frandal Lsbiiies
0} flang Term Bomowings 13 165,245,654 153,036,522
() [Trade 16 i 5
] {Deferred tmx Fabilithas {Met) 1" fi s
e} [Other non-current liabilities 17 1038534 01415
2 | Ouarrant Rabstics ’ ; ; ;
fa) Fnanclol Uiilitins
(- fLang Term Bomrmsings 13 " =
() [Shart Term Borrowings 15 0,051,530
(T} | Tracs payables ® m,765.715 18,067,108
I} | | Other correm ishikies hrd 5428177 |
3 L S L
CERTIFIED TRUE Crnv
d of Civectars
L..-- S — =
Krishna R.shia
Vehosa T Dirmctor Director
. Dib: 02044418 e -
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MDLA CIRCUS RETAIL PRIVATE LBSTED

mdmmwm&mmmmm,m Amounts in )
For yoar endod
PRt lm Not2 | Samuary, 2098 | 31t tarch, 3087
1| rovenue From Dporinds 32,991,505 36,017,058
il | Cther incomn 13 781,085 504,543 |
Il |Total ncorme {i+8) 32772590 36,501,601
N |Epenses :
Coat of muterals consumed o
Purchasss of Stock-in-Trage 20 11,188 5y 16,587, 7m
ch i Stack-in Trade aned o 2 5,878 5m5] - 4788
Employes benells egmrea 22 30,605,257 BnALAS
Fimncs costs . 3 A2 T
and xxper 3 1,988,096 4,189 |
(Other expormes 24 33,893,945 | 2,794,459
Tatal expenses (1V) 2,283,502 29,567,971
v |Pr ] -1y 148,510,912} (63,086,272
VI |Exmeptionat ems.
v |Promioss) befors b (v-vD) s o)
VI [Tan expense: .
1) |Comentix
12} | Dabered tax (a7, 185)) (8a,577)
X {Protk fLoss) for e period from coninuing VI teimaT o)
L mmnwm
I:I [Profitfkiss) rem Discontinued 52 (X0 =
X [Profioss) for e pariod (X308 {#8,108,807) MWJ
A M hat o profitor ioss
e of defined empioy o : 45545
m g rol 2 proii or loas
18 ) e . s/ tm prudt of Ioss ;
- (@ [ncome ta neteling I NEma that wil ba racksssified In profit or loss
v for the period h mamen|  (smie0]
) (125 fen
1125) (164)
. ) of
for Se— CERTIIED TRUE COPY
L_,_,\_.'\.‘- " oo €~
Hetsima R et Khustiros
Whole Time Discior Dirocior
DIN: 02044118 DIN7398950
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INDIA CIRCUS RETAIL PRIVATE LIMITED

+ Unaudited Cash Flow Btatament for the year sndod January 34, 2016

) in oument inbiliies
Cash Goneraid from Operstions

T paid
Cash Fiow From Oparsting A Ao E>

fAmounts in t)
Year onded Voor ended
Particuiars #1 January , 2018 1 March, 2017
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIMTIES £, * :
et Prok i Ta and i petod s I L N )
AddiLess: Inerest Income: - {129,508) (a2m,671)
Irkeverst Expanse 87,200 53,888
Deprecisfion : ’ 1982068 334,189
Suncry Balance Wittten Back * T
W.ﬂl‘ - (45, 844)
2351700 T 2w
Operatiog proft bufors working Caphal :
i
in Bank Bal
nmuum:‘ﬂfhsﬁl_wm-?. .
- ..' I o ncy

F=renatD St i i st
I nt prea—— 5
e —'.pw 9 o
Interesd income:
Intevost Experss

Wet Cash From F Activith

L In Camh and Cogh PBeCy
g Canb Equivalents {OPEMING BALANCE)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash nquivalents

8,880,878 BBITATR

r-mmmw {CLOSING BALANCE)

1 mmmmmm

Doen prepared under the "indiract Mahod a8 sot outIn nd AS - 7, * sistiemont of Cash Flow
2 Canh and cash oquivient it tha_end of year

3 Previous year's figuras have

mn,li-!k

For and an botalf of the Boand of Direciors

Lv- L

Krishna RLMehis
Wihcle Thme Direcior
DIN; 02044118
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INDIA CIRCUS RETAIL PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Unaudited financial Statements as on Jan'31 2048

1) Corporate information

Godrej and Boycs Manufacturing mmmstmmmhm Company. As & result, the company
# its subsidiary and henca 2 Deemed Public A

i mmmdumm-ﬁw-wwmmmm

a) Baais of preparsation

mmanhmmﬂm underihe historical cost convention unless otherwiss indicated. Hiatoricat
mummmmhu&mummmmhmmmgmmm Fair Value is
wmmmumm»unnmuorp-amm.mawinmmmm—nm
participanis at the messurement dats,

mm-mmumm.mwmumummu its Assets and Liabillbes at ihe Previous GAAP
atm:nmnluhﬁunndmatmlmdmmmﬂmhmmu anﬁms-dmdimmnmlwlmu
applying Falr valuation has not basn excercisad,

b}  Revenue recognition

I} Sala of product is recognized when risk and of ip of the product ere p on fo the cusiomers on
hmumammmummmmdm

)] mmmumwmmmmn
) Incoma on investmant - lnl-utlrmmeismmumadonmlhnlg

€) Leases
Operating lsase
mmmwmmammrﬂthMNmmmmnnmhMu,

nmummmmmum“ma-mhmwhmm
inNdeMquqummMimhonmdm

d) Cost recognition
Mmmmmmmmmmmmmmm

The costs to the Company sne broadly categorisad into Purchase of Traded Goods, Employse Bensfit Expenses,
mmwmmmmwmmm

a) mew
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The f y of the Campany is Indian Rupae,

Income and exp in foreign i at 0 ling on the dats of the iransaction. Forsign
mwmmmmmmuhmmmmnmm
MMWWMMMMMN 1 i are ised in the of profit and
loss,

Non-manstary assets and liabiities that Terms of historical in Forsign &% Bre not d
) Income toms

Incoms tax exp ! cuvrent tax sgp muumhhmum«mmm

MAmeMmmhmammmwmmmhmﬂum
in other income of directly in equity, in which cae, the cument and defemad tax are aiso

Whﬂwwhuumow“nwhqmm.

m Curent incoma taxes

The curant income tex: includes ir [payable by the Company.

mmmmmmmm“mmummmmmm
wmmumummumumwmnmmmmmum
the asset and liebifty on a net basis,

The Company recognises Interest lsvied and pensliies ralated 1o income fao interset I Tax
0 Dafarrod income tuxes

mmwhmmnmmw Dularred income tax assais and liabifties s
Wh“ﬂ“%ﬁhﬂﬂh%hh“dummmmm

m“mwmhmmummmmmﬁmmthl
that is not a b ibin mmmmmmm«mnumuw

Sigrafcant B 9 - - 1t of dek tax asmets thel can be recoghissd, based
mummmmwummmmmuwmummmrm

give fulure sconomic bensfits in ihe for of availability of set off against future incoms tx
1] Financial Instruments

mwnmmmmmmmthuwmdm
Mﬁmmmmnmmnwmrmmmm“mm
ummmmtm«mmwmmmmmmwwmum
ummwamnmwwummmummmmmummﬂ
financial Tability,

mmmmmmmwnmmmmhmmnmmumw
liability.

The fair valua of the Babilky poriion of 2 Compound Financial Instn. i d lined using a market inferest rate for an
non - i This basis i

on
This is recogrised and in 8h Equity and not subssgusnth

75



Cash and cash oquivalents

MMMGMWMWMMnMMMMMdM
thet are subjert to an wmwwmmmmwMMMSMaummha

F , o be cash Mmmwmdumwmm-.mm
withdraws| and usage.
Fis BSBols Bi T -l

Financial asssts are sub by at cost if these financlal assets am heid within a business whoss
whuﬂmmmmmmmlmmmhmm-dmm.uu
wmmmduhmmnﬂnmmdmwmmmmlm
oulstanding.

Fi a5auin ut fair valus through ather pr income
Fii ans &t fuir vahue through other comprehsnsiva income if these fAinancial aszels are hald within g
busi whose objactive is achisved by both colh ',mmmuﬁummmm—mmﬁ

mummmwmnmmmmwwmmm
Finencial assets ut falr vafus through proflt or foss

nwﬁmmuﬁmmmamumnnmunmwm«d&m

thwough other ingome on inftkal gr The costs dirsctly stiriburtabls 1o the actuisiion of
MM““I&MWMW““MWhM&M

Faanclal liabiities

Financial fsbiliiss are dat cost using the effeciiva interest method.,

Egulty instruments

Mmmummmwmsuhmuummm‘wm
linbilties. Equity inst ised by the Company g the p d off direct issus cost.

W) Property, plant and equipment

MmuWanmmmmmmmwmm
losz, IF any.

MHMMMMWQMMMMWMMMmMMIIh
prescribed under Schedule 1 1o the Companies Act 2013, In reapedt of Fixiures instalied In lsased premises, the cost
whmhdwhmmwmmmmwmm”mdmm

of sach reparting period, with the effect of-any changes in esth foronap hasis
Assets held under e | the sharter of the lease term and thelr usshul Fves.
Depraciation is i i d 1 the sssst Is ready
for it imanded use.
L] intangible sssaty
h al cost of fair vaiua B8 of the dale of acquisilion, &s app loss

wible assets
amartisation and sccumulated impairmant, If any.
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] Impairment
(1) Financlal assats (other than at fair valua)

mmmﬂﬂﬂdmmﬂlemw-mﬂwmbm
Ind AS 108 requires to b through = s alio The C: gnises (fatims exp
lnsses forall and / or all trad; that do ] For all ciher financial assets,
opected lassas are maasured af an amount aqual to the 12 month expected losses or at an amourt equal 1o the life time
mpectsd loseas if tha cradit sk on the financlal has i ignificantly since inftial recognition.

m Non-financial assets

Tangible and intangible assets
Mﬂﬂmdﬁmmmmhnm&mmmhm
indication that thair camying may not be If any such § mdsts, the amount (8.

MﬂhhiuluﬂucﬂblﬂMhmm}kmmmmmhﬁmhsmm
mmmmmm-mmmummmmnm«mmm
amount is o d for th b g mmnmmmmmmdmw.m
mmhmmmumnmuuwmm-n

CmmumﬂmM(wm.ljkenwhuhuﬂunhmmmhmmdh
assat (or CGU) ks reducad 1o its amount. An impair s recognised in th of profit and loss.

L] Employes benafits
{7} Defined benefit plans

comprehansive incomse for tha period in which they oocur. Mmmmmmmhmﬁwum
expenss at tha sadier of {a) when the plan amendment or curtailment coours: and (b} when the sntity mcognises related

coats or banafits,
The refire benefit obligati ar in the balance sheet mprazents the present value of the defined beneft
obligations, and has nol bsen funded.
{#) Dafined contribution plans
Co defired dordilin disa & /ices entiting them
to such bensfils.
) investories

i mumumummmmmmmmmim

m) Eamings per shara

B-hu-!nlrwwﬂuf computed by dividing wﬁgngmnﬁ#_h uﬂywa the Company by the
u&mm_&mq.w;immwn;u«fnmm' - b i
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n) Usa of estimates and jJudgements

The of thasa i in \ﬂ.im and cipl of Ind AS
mmmu—wmﬂmf‘ pany o ife of assets
and lisbilties, disck raluting to contings mudhdﬂldhmmﬁhm
amourts of income and expanss for the periods prasented.
and undertying P are reviewed on an ongaing basis, o g estimates are
in the period In which the estim fisad and futurs periods are affectsd,
mmumuwuumawm may cause g material adjustment

useful ives of property, plant and aquipment, vekssiion of defemed Lax

The C: fing velue of arvied o amoriised cost b frequently when there
&mmmnmw»m-nmhmmuw“hnhm
Tor.

statements, which
to ihe carying amounts of assets and liskilies within mmwm.hhmdmam
lax snmath,

Usoful lives of propenty, plent and sruipment
mmmumuwm.mmw;mmammmm
| in fulune pariods.

may result in P
vmwmmm

fing amourst &t the end of sach g period. The policy for the same
ummmmzm
Provisions and contingant Rabilbies
Amhm%h%ham%nlmemmwlkm&mu
outfiow of 1o setiis he in reapact of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions
(sxciuding retiroment benafits and i e not dis 10 fts presant value and are detarmined
Mmmmmnmmmmhmmmmnmmnmm
shest date adj i best Contingent lisbiHisa ara ot recogrisad in the fi

hwmhmrmmMuGhuhﬁm
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INDIA GIRGUS RETAIL PRIVATE LINITED
Notes forming part of the unaudited financlal staismonts

80

x {Amounts in T)
Pasticulars kd.h_‘ugﬂ.' As st March 31,
: M) —
Nots 4 - Lasns
Mon Curment
) sty Dpoe 5635210 960450
Total = 5,635,210 [T
Nots § : Deterved Tax Assat g
MNan
Opening Balandy (53,269) =
Loas: :
Transieared tb Profil and Losa Ascount 407,105 -
Total] . -
|Nota 6 : Inveniories
=
QM'M‘M@M 13,273,551 7393865
Joll  n.213ss1 7,393,855
[Nolo T : Trade Racelvabics
{a) Outskmncling for a period of more than six manths
Unsacured, considered Good
Unsacured, considensd doubfiul 2,019,511 zm‘
=1
1) Opening
2) Ads; Provis jcln during the year * 2Ma811 2040811
3} Less: Rovarsala during the yoar
= for D {142-3) 2,049,611 2040611
(b} Othes Trade raceivables.
Unsecured, canaidensd good
|‘ tor & period of mor than six months .
, consicenad Gaod 4,151.856 4351721
Othar Trade receiabics ]
L 3322542) L6787 |



INDIA CIRGUS RETAIL PRIVATE LIMITED

Ing part of tha stab
- - (Amounts in ¥)
8 : Cash and Gash Equivalonts -
on hand 68,890 7ig19
(Balances with bankg
= In Current Accounts 2601 008 2
- In Bank Fised Deposit . 11,849 m’“m
. I = Total 2772768 8,850,670
Mote §: Bank Balancas -
|Balances with banks
- In Current Accounts = .
- In Bank Fixed Deposit R a01400
Total - "B,014,880
Moto 10 : Short-Term Loans And Advancos
(8) Prapaid expenses - 116,341
| 1388466 | 129585
| 1188468] 1412363
667,126 Sm
3363333 | 318,031
Total 43578027 1,730,224
os) = h
20472 16,630
(b) Recaivable From Online Partnan 58,614 41724
(o)A fra {Tos) 3 64917
(d) Advances to Creditors 929,597 1,457,000
Total 1,072,407 | 1,580,731
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INDIA CIRCUS RETAIL PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes fornilng part of the unaudited financial etaiements

.___Asat January 3, 2018 L As at March 31, 2017
= . -_-_-_-_'_‘—
Particulars 7 Number of v ‘Number of r
sharas - ! shares
Note 12 : Share Gapital :
{a) AUTHORISED
Equity shares of 2 10 each i 5,000,000 500,000 5,000,000
Proferance shares of 10 each 26,000,000 250,000,000 | 25,000,000 | 250,000,000
Total Shars Capital = 25500000 | _ 000 | 25 560,000 255,000,000
(b ISSUED; BUBSCRIPED AND FULLY PAID up : 4
Qamufmw €10 each (with voting Aghts) - 385000 2850000] aa50000|
L 2.850,000 |
a) Reconcilistion of number of shares
mumm &l the beginning of the year 385,000
Add: lssued during thie year : . @
md%lmquﬁm £ W 385,000 385,000

.b)'l'arulmlhlhﬂ-‘lw Equity Sharas
Tha Company has only one class of equity sharss, Mhuhdmmnmmwmmwmw,w
MMMcMﬂmmudmmwhhwmum ) .
|nmeMumuumm.mmuwmwmmbmmunumah

W, ining after di of all ; , In prop wumummm

©) The Compary i a subsidairy of Godre] and Boycs Mig.Co.Ltd.
d) Details of Equity shares heid by sach sharshaid ng more than 5% sh
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Snancial

§Amcints in T)
Pasticutary #a 0t Jan 31, 2018 "‘“'::"‘ 3

liﬂia!lnu—manmudnp

Mion Curmesd

Liskility Compondnt &f Cornpound Finenclal Instrument
6% y e . A ! ; :
Blsis | IG5 | . 152,026,907 |
lwﬁMWﬂM . b &
Nurmber of Shares at the beginning of the year 23,000,000 AR000,000
Pk kssued during the year 2,000,000 5,000,000
Musnber of Shares a1 the end of the year 25,000,000 23,000,000

Value of 5% Cptionally R -
Preference Shanes of Rx. 10 each lesed : 250000000 | - 230,000,000

wwmmﬁmmmmmmdm
Redesmahie Preference Shares

1 Pre Shotd ot y 5 b

Hime b h The N

time belng paid up he pay bosts and the shall

T QLY 3
) The sald shams shall in winding up b entitisd o rnk of cagital and
i nolup o the -mwmmn
m rlll _1.4‘_‘ n.. X bl b b . _‘II_-l'
47 ol e companies A 2073, . 5

b o tha prufuronce shares are as under:

To b redeemed at the end of the b ding ton (16} yoces from o

The OCRPS [Op ity ik ; will have an eption to
ith HNUWJ -y d lﬂ-"’ it th
ﬁnfl-ueatﬂnhsnmmMrm'“ 1 op mmmmh
ve the i -mmvmuaemm-gmmum
be eatitled w1 {One)

* i e dah hich it ers obs restl

Share hlhurl'; Inthe

Total -

) T of bems fane Rablity
(O difierence betwean book balance and t batince of Reed mssets
mm Aot ) e e tor

Teox effoct of Hfems consiituing dofemed tax fabiky 2
() T effoct of ams conetiuting defamed tax asseis
Oxhars. ’

IR T

mﬁdmmmh@ﬁ =
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INDIA CIRGUS RETAIL PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the unaudited financlal statements

(Amounts in 7)
Mots 15 : Short Term Borrwings
Currsnt
mm::mmmwwﬂu 30,031,530
Unsecured Loan from Director/Shareholder. . T
= -——— = —Total 30,031,530 -
Blote 16 : Trade Payables '
Non Current
(&) For goods -
Y — :
Current
(@) For gooda 11,815,122 6,822,033
(b} For exponses 8,950,593 12,045,075 |
= okl W65 | 48867408
M‘ér:mwmmmm h
Non Current
{a_):“ i of Leave & Graiuity 1,034,534 T0L446 I
| Outstaning expenses ' A
{c) Advance from Customers &
1,034,534 701,436
!an 5
(8) Provision of Salary & Leave encashment + Gratuity 355,707 1,526,833
(b) Oulstanding expenses = =
@Mmmlmu 1,572,420 1,804,195
e __ .sfi‘ﬁZﬂ‘? m
Totai Y
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INDIA CIRCUS RETAIL PRIVATE LIMITED
Naden forming part of the uweudited financial statoments

{Amounts In €}
Farticulars . Yearanded . Yoar ouded
: e 31 March 20t7
ﬁua:mrmm
— ;
. 2098621 34529264
Mgt 305708 _ saLon
4 Freat Ghianges - Racelved bom Cusscmer s87,140 waz
mmmu'urm '
¢ - 4 781.085 32,66
i o —
Noto 20 : Purchases of Biock In Trade :
(a Parchis o T oot oo |, 1samus
ﬂﬁhinndpuuum 2,188,225 17085
Note 21 : Charigas in Inventorise Of Finished Goods : .
7,299,386 212,75
nzmss| ymases
—[EETO68H| ___d7avem |
khﬂiﬁmmm '
(o} Sanes wages & Bonus 29,594,857 |- n‘lﬂ,‘s‘
{15 Contrbation m P Esic Mwe smapca | i
ynﬁmm_m 3450 ) 252734
[ Stafl wekiorn aspemen 21071 | ©a9
' = — A
o 23 Finanioo Cost '
() Inkeroed Expensda 487,202 .
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INDIA CIRCUS RETAIL PRIVATE LIMITED
HNotes forming part of the unauditod financial statements

DIN: 02044118

{Amounts in &)
Particulars Yearended Yoar anded
31 lanuary 2018 M March,2017
{Hote 24 ; Other Expanses
ruvertiament 11,307,101 11,002,509
R g . 1,140 45,282
intnres? on Lebs Paymen! of Duties & Tases 5 53,865
Masketing 2775384 82677
Logltic 3,089,502 5.568,745'
Rent 7712880 473,352
[Nermboion. 2743805 3.308.274
{Software Charges 2313183 3,169,800
Web Server Charges 1310086 2,188 558
fLegal and professional 92,020 2081748
Pravision for Bad debts . 2,040,811
Traveling & Cormveyanca 452 500 688,850
Fayment Geteway Charpes 151,838 478,605
Lo on Extiguishment of Fixed Assets - 425,747
Brokeraga & Gommission L 197,482 400,603
Miscellansous Haass ThE480 |
Payments to ewdhors (Refer Note () beiow) @7.125) 264,626
Telephone, Mablle & inlemat: ezt | 119,803
Eleciricity 285,332 10,000
Danation 45,000 i
DATME] _ ASTeAG
|@Ply;mhhum
- A maditoes - statutory audit (ndcuding Barvice Taxy 1BO75D)
- For Tax Audlt Fees 4875
- For ofher Cariification services 0|
Toal - 284,625
ranhgpwm
[Nt proil / Loms - avallabla: for Equity sham holdars in ¥ (48,103,807 {83,091,440)
of Equity shares i 385,000 385,000
Basic Eaming per share (125) thJI
Face valos per shars (in%) 1w 10
T For e v Ekalf of e Bowe ol i
o mkest = L
Krishna R.Mehta Khishroo B.Master
“Whels Time Director Dirgclor
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REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF GODREJ & BOYCE
MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED AT ITS MEETING HELD ON 27™ APRIL, 2018
AT BOARD ROOM, 3R? FLOOR, PLANT 13 ANNEXE, PIROJSHANAGAR, VIKHROLI,
MUMBATI 400 079

The proposed Scheme of Amalgamation of India Circus Retail Private Limited (‘ICRPL’) (the Wholly
Owned Subsidiary of Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing Company Limited) with Godrej & Boyce
Manufacturing Company Limited (‘G&B’ or ‘the Company’) and its respective Shareholders (‘the
Scheme’) was approved pursuant to a Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Company dated 29"

January, 2018.

Pursuant to Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, a report adopted by the board of directors
explaining effects of the scheme on each class of shareholders, key managerial personnel (KMP),
promoters and non-promoter shareholders laying out in particular the share exchange ratio, is required

to be circulated to the shareholders along with the notice convening the meeting.

Having regard to the aforesaid provision, following was discussed by the Board of Directors of the

Company:

Effect of the Scheme of Amalgamation on each class of Shareholders, Key Managerial Personnel,
Promoters and Non-Promoter Shareholders of G&B:

1. Since ICRPL is a Wholly-Owned Subsidiary of G&B, upon effectiveness of the Scheme i.e. on
Amalgamation of ICRPL with G&B, no Shares of G&B shall be issued and allotted in lieu or
exchange of the holding in ICRPL. Upon effectiveness of the Scheme, the shares held by G&B in
ICRPL shall stand cancelled.

2. There is no adverse effect of the Scheme on the Equity Shareholders (the only class of the
Shareholders) of the Company, the Promoter and Non-Promoter Shareholders, the Key Managerial
Personnel and/or the Directors of G&B.

3. No change in Key Managerial Person is expected pursuant to the Scheme.

4. Under the Scheme, there is no arrangement with the Creditors of G&B. No compromise is offered
under the Scheme to any of the creditors of G&B. The liability of the creditors of G&B, under the

Scheme, is neither reduced nor being extinguished.
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5. Under the Scheme, there is no arrangement with the Debenture Holders of G&B. No compromise
is offered under the Scheme to any of the Debenture Holders of G&B. The liability of the Debenture

Holders of G&B, under the Scheme, is neither reduced nor being extinguished.

6. Under the Scheme, there is no arrangement with the Depositors of G&B. No compromise is offered
under the Scheme to any of the Depositors of G&B. The liability of the Depositors of G&B, under

the Scheme, is neither reduced nor being extinguished.

7. The Scheme is not prejudicial to the interest of the Shareholders or the Creditors of the Company.

8. All costs and charges of any nature arising or incurred in connection with and implementing this

Scheme shall be borne by G&B.

For Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing Company Limited

Sd/

J.N. Godrej

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN: 00076250
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REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF INDIA CIRCUS RETAIL
PRIVATE LIMITED AT ITS MEETING HELD ON 27™ APRIL, 2018 AT GODREJ PLANT
13 ANNEX, 2"° FLOOR, PIROJSHANAGAR, VIKHROLI (E), MUMBALI - 400079

The proposed Scheme of Amalgamation of India Circus Retail Private Limited (‘ICRPL’ or ‘the
Company’) (the Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing Company Limited) with
Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing Company Limited (‘G&B’) and its respective Shareholders (‘the
Scheme’) was approved pursuant to a Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Company dated 29"

January, 2018.

Pursuant to Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, a report adopted by the board of directors
explaining effects of the scheme on each class of shareholders, key managerial personnel (KMP),
promoters and non-promoter shareholders laying out in particular the share exchange ratio, is required

to be circulated to the shareholders along with the notice convening the meeting.

Having regard to the aforesaid provision, following was discussed by the Board of Directors of the

Company:

Effect of the Scheme of Amalgamation on each class of Shareholders, Key Managerial Personnel,
Promoters and Non-Promoter Shareholders of ICRPL:

1. Since ICRPL is a Wholly-Owned Subsidiary of G&B, upon effectiveness of the Scheme i.e. on
Amalgamation of ICRPL with G&B, no Shares of G&B shall be issued and allotted in lieu or
exchange of the holding in ICRPL. Upon effectiveness of the Scheme, the shares held by G&B in
ICRPL shall stand cancelled.

2. There is no adverse effect of the Scheme on the Equity Shareholders and the Preference
Shareholders of the Company, the Promoter and Non-Promoter Shareholders, the Key Managerial
Personnel and/or the Directors of ICRPL.

3. No change in Key Managerial Person is expected pursuant to the Scheme.

4. Under the Scheme, there is no arrangement with the Creditors of ICRPL. No compromise is offered
under the Scheme to any of the creditors of ICRPL. The liability of the creditors of ICRPL, under

the Scheme, is neither reduced nor being extinguished.
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5. The Scheme is not prejudicial to the interest of the Shareholders or the Creditors of the Company.

6. All costs and charges of any nature arising or incurred in connection with and implementing this

Scheme shall be borne by G&B.

For India Circus Retail Private Limited

Sd/

P.E. Fouzdar
Director

DIN: 00066123
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BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
BENCH, AT MUMBAI
COMPANY SCHEME APPLICATION NO. 203 OF 2018
IN THE MATTER OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

AND

IN THE MATTER OF SECTIONS 230 TO SECTION 232 OF THE COMPANIES ACT,

2013 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

AND

IN THE MATTER OF SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION OF INDIA CIRCUS RETAIL

PRIVATE LIMITED (‘ICRPL’ OR ‘THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY’) WITH GODREJ &
BOYCE MANUFACTURING COMPANY LIMITED (‘G&B’ OR ‘THE TRANSFEREE
COMPANY’) AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS

India Circus Retail Private Limited ... the First Applicant Company
Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing ... Second Applicant Company
Company Limited

Form No. MGT-11
PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
CIN: U52600MH2011PTC223988
Name of the company: INDIA CIRCUS RETAIL PRIVATE LIMITED
Registered Office: GODREJ PLANT 13 ANNEX, 2P FLOOR, PIROJSHANAGAR,
VIKHROLI (E), MUMBALI- 400 079

Name of the member (s):
Registered address:
E-mail ID:

Folio No / Client ID:

DP ID:

Number of Share(s) held:

I /We, being the member(s) of [ ] Equity Shares of the abovenamed Company,
hereby appoint

. Name:
Address:
Email Id:
Signature: Or failing him/her
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2. Name:
Address:
Email Id:

Signature: Or failing him/her
3. Name:

Address:

Email Id:

Signature:

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on Poll) for me/ us and on my/ our behalf at the

Meeting of the Equity Shareholders of India Circus Retail Private Limited to be held on

23" day of June, 2018 at 10:00 a.m. at Plant 11, Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing Company

Limited, Pirojshanagar, Vikhroli, Mumbai — 400079 and at any adjournment or

adjournments thereof in respect of the Resolution as indicated below:

Resolution No.

Approval of the Scheme of Amalgamation of India Circus Retail Private Limited with Godrej
& Boyce Manufacturing Company Limited and their respective Shareholders and matters related

thereto

Signed this ................dayof ................... 2018

(Signature of Shareholder(s)

Affix Re. 1
Revenue
Stamp

Signature of Proxy........................

NOTES:

1.

Eall

This form in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of ICRPL at Godrej Plant 13 Annex, 2™ Floor, Pirojshanagar,
Vikhroli (E), Mumbai — 400 079, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of
the Meeting.

Please affix revenue stamp before putting signature.

Alterations, if any, made in the Form of Proxy should be initialed.

In case of multiple proxies, the proxy later in time shall be accepted.

Proxy need not be the Shareholder of the Company.
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India Circus Retail Private Limited
Regd. Office: Godrej Plant 13 Annex, 2" Floor, Pirojshanagar,
Vikhroli (E), Mumbai — 400 079
Tel: +91-22-61118483
Email id: umeshs@jindiacircus.com
Website: www.indiacircus.com
CIN: U52600MH2011PTC223988
Attendance Slip

NOTE: Shareholders attending the Meeting in Person or by Proxy or through Authorised
Representative are requested to complete and bring the Attendance Slip with them and hand it

over at the entrance of the Meeting hall.

I hereby record my presence at the Meeting of the Equity Shareholders of ICRPL, convened
pursuant to the Order dated 8" day of May, 2018 of the National Company Law Tribunal,
Mumbai Bench, at Plant 11, Godrej & Boyce Manufacturing Company Limited, Pirojshanagar,
Vikhroli, Mumbai — 400079 on 23™ day of June, 2018 at 10:00 a.m.

Name and Address of the Equity Shareholder/Proxy/Authorized Representative
(in block letters)
Folio No.

DP ID:*

Client ID:*:

No. of Share(s) held

Full name of the Equity Shareholder/ Proxy/

Authorised representative Signature
(in block capitals)

* Applicable for Shareholders holding Shares in dematerialised form.

Notes:

1. Shareholders attending the Meeting in person or by proxy or through Authorised
Representative are requested to complete and bring the attendance slip with them and
hand it over at the entrance of the Meeting hall.

2. Shareholder/Proxy Holder/Authorised Representative who desire to attend the
Meeting should bring his/ her copy of the Notice for reference at the Meeting.

3. Members are informed that no duplicate slips will be issued at the venue of the

Meeting and they are requested to bring this slip for the Meeting.
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Route Map along with prominent landmark for easy location to reach the Venue of the

Meeting is given below:
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